, During the year of 1930, the primary teachers of the Carbor County School
District, under the leadership of Lamont Poulter, Primery Superviscr, conceived
the 1dea of assembling and compiling data concernmg the early history and de-
velopmont of Carbon County. The principal object of this work was to provide a
fund of interesting and useful information for use in the social studics of the
upper primary grados. '

In zollecting material for this monograph, overy available scurcc of ro-
lisblc informstion wes contactecd. Xarly sotilers of the variocus communities werc
interviewed ard first-hand information sclicited, County and ecclesiastical re-
cords werc studicd, Recerds of the various fuel companies were made avaiiable
through the courtesy of company officials, and much interesting and rclieblc dsta
glcancd from these sourccs. Vuarious company officials end political officers
preparcd statements concerning industrial and political phescs of our comunity
lifc. In addition, many other records .and individuals have aided materizlly in
preparing this work.

Ia order to assure, as far as possible, accuracy of the data presented,
the syllabus has been carefully read by persons qualified to judge its historical
value. No effort has been made to present this data as a literary urit in the
way of organizing subject matter or presenting it. The different articles are
the products of as many differont writers. It is belicved that thie varioty of
style will, of itsclf, add to tho intorest of the work.

In yrescnting this 1ittlc monoErepheto.the tcachers and pupils of Curbon
District, we dosirc to oxpross aBain = poiation to &ll who have aided
in *ollocting and compiling tho maborial* assom IT it aids, even in
a smell dcgree, in giving the youth 91" Garbon County a clearcr picturc of their
homcland and a decper appreciation or*thoir sturdy pionecer ancestors and cthers
who hclped in the development of th 'mtida, the offort will not have boen in

vain, and thosc who have dono tho ‘wo¥ vha emply repeid.
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CHAPTIR I. PHYSICAL FEATURES D EARLY HISTORY
- L ‘
‘Tecation-Doundary-Sige:

Corbon County is locuted in Contrcl Utah, 126 miles southeast of Sclt Lake
City. It is bounded un the north by the counties of Utoh, Duchesne, ond Uintah; on
the east by Uintah, fron chich it is sepercted by the Green River; on the south by
Emery, and on the west by the County of Sanpete. Fromr north to south it is 24 miles
wide, 74 niles long, with an arec of over 1,536 sguare miles.

Physical Featuress

"This great coal county is peculicrly situated. Its western end rises from
7,000 to 10,400 feet above sex level to rest upon the Tasatch pleteou, down the
ecstern escarnnent of which Price river has c:.:.;t. its canyon to tumble into the beauti-
ful Ccstle Valley. The velley stretches to the south ceross the southern half of
Corbon into Zmery County, while the neaks and cliffs of the Vasatch range hedze it in
on the north and s:est, and the Book Cliffs bound it on the east, extending entirely
across the cast end of the county. The Wasztch nlateau is for the most nart a broad
unlend, whose surface shows smooth, geatle slopes, but whose eastern front is marked
by vsry steep sendstone cliffs, vhich rise from 1000 to 2000 feet above Ccstle Valley.
These cliffs are breached by deep canyons which extend back as far es 35 miles from
the froat of the cliffs.” ,

The Price River is the wrincipcl water course. Tributary to it are Gordon,
Fish, :iller, and Villow Crceks and some’smaller streans, this sysiem tatering the
western holf of the county. In the eastern part are severcl smell conyon sircans,
the most iajortant being Hine dile or lidnnimaade, Jack Cenyon, Soldier, Coul, Dug-
out, cad Grassy Trcil. The climote is moderate with very plecsant winters free fron
fog, sumoke and extrcme cold. Carbon County mey indced be czlled the suiny wlley of
the Stcte for very few days are without rediant sunshine.

Grovth:

In 1879 the territory surrounding Price, Xnmowm st that time as Castle Valley,

beczuse of the picturcsque mountain turrets cnd battlements, was little more thin =
rendezvous for Iadions, cattle-rustlers and bandits. Honc of its many thousand
acres of fcrtile lends had yet beon upturned by the v shirc, nor hed its great de-
posits of cocl in the nearby hills felt the toucih of tihe niner'!s pick. Traonping and
fur-trading were the nrincinal industries engnsed in by the early scttlers widle a
fev stroggling herds of cattle and sheep dotting the 300,000 zcres of raiges. Today
more thnn 4,000,000 tons of cocl are shipped from mines operating in the county.
Thesc uines eaploy approxinately 3,500 miners who arc naid more than (12,000,000 2
year. Although cocl mining is the most important industry, ngriculture has not bteen
neglccted., The soil in the velleys is generally fertile end there are about /26,000
acres of egricultural lands now under cultivation with sromise of more in the wvery
near future as the Price River Vater Conservation projecct becomes fully develered.
In 1970, 27,000 head of shecp owmed in the cocunty were assessed, besides 25,000 nore
which cune into Carbon to graze during the swmer. In addition, thousands of hecd of
cattle grazec on the descrts and highlands of the county. According to revorts of the
forcstry scrvice, 35,712 acres of the iianti ilational TForest lie in Cerbon County.

This is just the beginning in the devlopments of the natural resources thet
abound in this section of the state. After the comdletion of the nain line of the
D. & R. G. ¥. Railrozd (at first known as the Rio Grande Vesitern), cocl mines were
opened in various nlaces and branch raillroads werc built into the mining districts.
The breonch to the Clear Creel: nines was built in 1898, thut to Sunnyside two yeers
later, and the Hicwatha branch wos opened in 1908, The oneaing of new cocl umines
and building of the branch railroeds proved o stimulus to settlement, and in 1910
Carbon reported a population of 8,8%4. In 1920 the »opulation vas cstimoted et
15,489 vhile in 1930 tne records show 17,674.

Organiration of Cerbon Countys

By an act of the Utzh Legislature, approved by Governor Vest on llarch 8, 1894,
the northern sart of Dmery County wes organized into the County of Carbon, so named
because of the rich deposits of coal within its limits. The active scttlement dates
from the building of the Rio Grande Railrocd, vhich was comjleted through the county
in 1385. On Hovember 20, 1832, thc sizll settlement of Latter Day Saints on the
Price River was organized into a ward, with George Frandsen as Bishop. This is the
first record of an organized settlement in the county. The first election of county
officers was held on Tuesday, May 1, 1894, and resulted in the choice of the follow-
ing officers: E. C. Lece, E. P. Gridley, and Evgene Santschi, Sr., selectmen (Com-
missioners); H. A. Nelson, treasurcr, S. J. Harkness, attorncy; W. J. Tidwell, sur-
veyor, E. k. Olsen, provate judge, and J. W. Davis, Supt. of Schools. At thc same
election Pricc was selected as the County seat.



=2

- It is estimated thot there are about 125 billion tons of coal in Carbon
County. This vast amount would keep all the houses warm, would turn the wheels of
all the factories in existence and would. supply heat for every purpose for all the
world ror at least one hundred years. -

"In 1930, 4,220,660 tons of coal were taken from our mines", says R. J.
Vaughn, Supcrintendent of the Utah Reilway Company. He continues, "The ordinary coel
car with which we are familiar is of fifty-ton capatity and approximately 45 feet in
length. If the vast amount of coul brought from our mines last year were loaded in-
to such cars it would require 83,412 of them to haul it. If these were made into
one train the caboose would be at Price and the locomotive would be far becyond the
California line and our train would be 720 miles long.

Nearly all of the coul from the Carbon and Emery mines is taken westward ox
Soldicr Summit and dovm Spanish Fork Canyon. The gradc up to Soldier Summit is sc
heavy that three powerful locomotives are required to pull and push a2 train of 55
cares of coul up the stecp incline. One thousand five imundred and thirty-seven
trains, each averaging 55 cars, wore necessary to carry away the coal mined last
year. If one should imagine that the locomotives used in moving thcse trains were .
not in use more than once, he could rcadily see the total number of locomotives wou
be abuut 4,611. If these were coupled together, they would cover almost cighty mil
of track. Since there are two enginc men employed on each locomotive and 2 train
crew of three men on every train it is readily seen thnt a comparatively large num-
ber of men are employed to transport the coal after it is mined."

It is cstinated that approximately 3,500 men are employed in the mining indu.
try of Carbon County. This gives a general idea of the vast extent of the coal in-
dustry of Carbon ana its importance to the state.

¥r. A. C. Wattis, Chief Engineer and Geoloéist of the Utah Fuel Company, has
given sone very valuable information on the formation and nmining of coal in ihe
following article:

~STORED SUWLIGHT

"Iwo tkcories hove been advanced to explain the method of formation, or the
origin of coal, both of which have their adherents among geologists. One theory is
called the "Drift" theory und the other the "Peat" theory or formation "Ensitu'.
Various conl deposits are rxnown which seem to prove one theory to the discredit of
the other, but as the formation of coal is such an cxtremely slow process compared
with the history of man since he became engaged in scicntific studies, we have no
mecans now from which to determine definitely which theory is corrcct.

"On onc point all scen to agree and that is, coal is the result of slow decom-
position of vcgetable matter under water and without contact with air. The accumu-
lation of the imnense quantities of vcgetable matter nccessary to form the great
deposit of coal is the main subject of dispute. Adhereats to the "Drift" thcory
clain that trces, leoves, ferns, mosses, etc., were carriced to large basins, or sone-
tines to the shores of prehistoric, inland scas by rivers and floods. Aftcrvards
these great deposits of vegetable matter were covered by sand and earth broug.it down
fron higher lovels of the earth's surface by water. Adherents to the "Pecat" theory
clain th:t coal originatcd in shallow water and built up and extended into decper
water on the dead forms of its progenitors. It is beyond the power of the hunua mind
to conceive the stretches of tiize during which the deposits were formed and the
length of time they lay while the tnousands of feet of rock layers which rest on the:
were formed. Sonc scientists estimated that it took thirty years to form a bed of
coal onc foot thick. At this rate it took 9,000 years to form some of the coal beds
now being worked in the state.

"At all events the coal we use in this state was formed ages before preohdstor:
aan made his appearance. We often find carbonized tree trunks and limbs in the coal
beds and the rocks forming the roof often have beautifully clean-cut impreczions of
forns and polm leaves. Thesc plants grew in & warn, humid climate through the wmists
of wiich the sum must lwve picrced with bright burning rays. As these plantc thrive
in the tropical sun and depended on it for their lives, coal, the remains oi that
long-agzo life, is sometimes called "stored sunlight”."

* * *

History does not tell us when man first discovered coal would buru, but it is
not 8o very long ago that coal was first used for heating purposes. The discovery o
stean by James Watt, and the invention and developneat of the stcan engine led to
tho extended use of coal. In the United States tav early cval miners had o hard
struggle to induce the pcople of Pennsylvania to use coal instead of wood. It was
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plztly-beeauae-the-eoal then mined was untﬁracite,.othnrwise called hard\coal,'or
'ston? coal:i which is much harder to ignite than the bituminous or soft coel, we are
accustoncd to. o ol 3 . . ] : , »

R

In Utah, old reports indicate that coal was first discovered in 1849, in the
Sanpete Valley, and mention is made of its disgovery in 1851 near Cedar City. In
January, 1854, the Utah Legislature offered a reward of 4.1,000.00 to any resident
who would open a vein of coal not less than 18 inches thick within forty miles of
Salt Lake City, and where it could be profitably worked. This reward wes claimed by
Williom H. Kimball and John Spriggs in 1860, but refused on the ground that the mine
was morc than forty miles distant and the coal was of an inferior quality. In 1863
a mine had been opened forty miles from the capitol and cocl sold for $40.00 a ton.

Probably little was done toward developing thc coal deposits in the early
days becausc the country was very sparscly settled - the industries of the territor
were for the most part confined to agricultural pursuits. There were no railroads
and the only means of transportation was by mecans of wagons drawn by oxen or horscs
Inquiry among the settlers might devclop the fact that cosl was mined for domestic
use, but the mines were probably what we now call "country banks". That is, the
farmers at the close of the harvest season would go to the coal deposits and dig out
enough coal for their winter use. The mines, if such they may be called, were not
opencd in a systematic way, but the farmers would dig in from the outcrop far enough
to get solid coal and would take no more pains with their work than to protect then-
selves from loose rock. Even to this day these "country banks" are found, although
most of them are now opened a little more carefully. In some places in Castlc Vall«
where the coal seams are from twenty to thirty feet thick, the farmers drive their
teans into the evcavations that have been made and load the coal directly into their
wagons. Only the largc lunps would be taken, the finer would be throwvm away.

‘With the discovery of precious mectals and the more extensive development of
lode or underground mining, the need of a more condensed fucl than the timber of the
surrounding nmountains for power and smelting purposes led to the further developmenti
of Utch's coel fields. The advent of steam railroads have impetus to the develop-
ment of our coal dcposits and in 1869, after the completion of the Union Pacific
Railroad (then called Pacific Union because it united the Atlantic and Pacific in a
peaceful manner) mines began to be opcned. Coal was probably brought to Salt Leke
City by meoans of wagons dramm by oxen or horses, and on account of the long distancer
it had to be hauled it was very probable that only snall gquantitices were usced here
and its use was very likely restricted to the more afflucnt citizens. It was not
until June 13, 1870, that coal was taken there by rail.

Three kinds of coal are found in the State, namely: Lignite, Bituminous and
Anthracite. The grades of coal arc determined by the amounts of moisture, volatile
matter and fixed carbon. Thus, lignite has the largest amount of moisture and the
smallest amount of fixed carbon with a large percentage of volatile matter. Bitumin-
ous has less noisture and volatilc matter and more fixed carbon, while anthracite
has tuc least moisture and volatile matter and the greatest amount of fixed carbon.

Lignite comes from Coalville, Utah, and also from Wyoming. Almost all of the
bituninous eoal comes from Carbon County, .the next largest amount from Emery, and
anthracite comes from Colorado. Geologists estimate that the State has about..
15,000 square miles of workable coasl measures which contain 197,000,000,000 tons,
enouzh to supply the United States at the 1914 rate of consumption for 386 years.

It is estimated by geologists that approximately 24,000 squarc miles of the

. original coal deposits of Utah have been eroded or washed away by waters in past
ages, and if we accept the estimates for remaining acrcage as being correct, then

an amount of coal, at least equal to that remaining in the state has been washed dowr
the forges of the Colorado river into the gulf of California.

Contrary to the generel idea nost pcople have as to the mode of occurrcnces
of coal beds, the deposits in Utah, for the most part, are comparatively flat, lying
like big, thick blankets so that the proper term to use would be a bed or seam of
coal, rather than & vein of cool. In some districts we find as many as four or
five workalble seams, separated of course, by varying thicknesses of rock. In these
places no sean is mined thot is less than five feet thick.

Had it not been for the movements of the earth's surface, and the erosive
acticn of water, these beds of coal would not show on the surface as they do now,
and would hzve been worked through shafts, but the canyons and valleys that have been
forncd have so exposed the coal seams, that they are now visible and can be entered
from the surface by drifts or tunnels.

The mines are developed by means of the trec system of rooms and pillars. Thi.
s7aton i3 80 called because the map of such workings has some resemblance to a tree.
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“ The auin tunnel by which the mino is entered and the coal brought out corresponds to

~~ the:trunk of a trees. The tunnels branch from-each side of th:gmain tunnel aggn‘a o
correspond to the branches of the treey while tho rooms correspond to the leaves on
the branches. All tunnels are driven inmirs for the purposc of properly ventilat-
ing tho'minc. Fresh air is kept constantly circulating through all parts of the
mine, the same as water through pipes, by means of large fans. These fans resemble
the paddle wheels of an old-style river steamboat and are caused to revolve rapidly
by steam or electricity, thus pulling out from the mines through one tunnel,, the air
which enters by way of the other tunnel. :

It is nocessary to supply fresh air to the mine workings because most coal
mines generate poisonous or explosive gases, and even if they did not generate these
gases the good air would soon be used up by the men and animals or would become
fouled by the men's lights and the smoke from the blasting. Inside the mine the
mining operations are not simply shoveling the coal into cars, for the coal is all
in a solid mass which has to be cut or mined first, then blasted down with powder,
loaded into the cars and hauled out of the mine. In former times, and even now in
some places, the miners would cut the coal with picks. This they had to do by knecl
ing down, or lying on their sides and cutting three or four feet under. Now this is .
mostly done by means of machinery. Mining machines arc endless chains with little
picks in them which are run by electricity. Coal is blasted down in the better regu
lated mines by using electricity to explode the powder. By this means, all men and
animels are permitted to be outside the mine when the shooting is done, tlms avoid--
ing all deager from explosions. As a further precaution against explosions the work-
ing places are sprinkled with water and are kept thoroughly wet dom so that no coal
dust can be stirred up by men, animals, or cars, or by the blasting.

In the larger mines the main tunnels called haulage ways and man-ways, are
lighted by electricity, but all men carry their om lights with them. These lights
are small lamps carried on the caps the men wear. The light comes from the burning
acetyline gas which is formed by dropping water on calcium carbide. Before thcse
lights were invented, oil lamps, burning lard oil, etc., werc used, but these smoked ,
burncd a great deal of oxygen and were dirty as well as extrcmely dangerous. In
some mines where cxplosive gases are found, the safety lamps must be used. These
are somewhat like small lanterns with the upper part having a cylinder of very fine
wire gauze above the flame. This wire gauze cools the explosive gases so they can-
not igmitc and explode. Thesce lamps burn gasoline and are so made that the miner
cannot open them. Electric safety lamps are now being used in mines in this state in
place of the old style safety lamp. They are small globes worn on the miner's cap,
the electricity being supplied by a battery which is carried in the pocket or attach-
ed to a belt around the waist. The wires go over the ®op of the miner's cap and down

his back.

Coal, as it comes fronm the nine, is called "run-of-nmine". It is dumped by
what is called a "tipple" into shaking screens which separate it into various com-
mercial sizes. The iodern tipple of today is arranged so that a2 number of sizes of
coal may be made. Slack is the coal that passes through a 1-5/8" screen (stcel
plate with 1-5/8" round perforations); egg cozl is that which passes over a 1-5/8"
scroon and through a 43" screen; stove is the coal which passes over a 3" or 43"
screcn and through & 6" or 8" screen; nut coal is that which passes over a 1-5/8"
screcn znid through & 3" screen; cobble lump is the coal which passes through a 6" or
8" scrcen and through a 10" screen; big lump is the coal which passes over a 10"
screen; 8" lump is the coal which passes over an 8" screen; domestic lump is the coal
which passes over a 1-5/8" screen. When the slack is re-scrcened to make "pea!
(screcned slack) and dust, it is passcd over a screcn with 3/4" perforations; the coa:
which passcs over this screen is called pea coal and the coal which goes through the
3/4" screen is dust. The Spring Canyon tipple is provided with spirals for nechani-
cally rcmoving the impurities from the pea coal. This is belicved to be the only
spiral plant in the west. The Spring Canyon tipple is considered one of thc best in
the West and was desismed especially for the preparation of domestic coals.

The Coal is then loaded into railroad cars and shipped through the state to
adjoining states. A lorge amount is shipped to California and some to the Northwest.
The demands for cozl in Utah are entirely too small to keep the mines of tlie state
running steadily, and as it is desirable to operate them as nearly full-time as
possible, the mine owners must look for outside markets to fill in.

CHAPTER III. _MINE ACCIDENTS, THEIR CAUSES AND PREVENTION

This chapter consists of 2 sories of articles by authoritics on coal min%ng,
dealing with minc accidents and their provention. It is apparcnt that thic subject
is elways uppernost in the minds of those who are responsiole for the welfarc of
those who gtin their livclibood by nmining.
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The following article was prepared-by Robert Howard, General Mine Inspector,
;::c;egg"aisige regular monthly meeting of the officials of the U, S. Fuel Company,
: iy . Y § gy 4 Y : 1

Accidents in coal mines bave been*knowmn since coal first started to be mined,
and as mcn are human and liable to err, we are very likely to have accidents as
long as coal mining continues.

The causes of accidents in mincs, and the development of measures for combat-—
ing or avoiding them, have, for many years past, been the subjects of careful study
and cxperimental investigation at the hands of practical men possessing special
knowledge and expericnce in connection with mines, and also of eminent authorities
in science and its application. '

Statistics, bearing on accidents in mines, have been collected in England
since the year 1835, by commiscions appointed by Parliament for that purpose, and
these comnissions have collected and weightud the results of experience and the
opinion of miners, mine officials and scientific experts.

Legislative enactments, both in this country and in other countries, have beca
made consequent upon these official inquiries, and have from time to time, effeccted
inproveaent in the working conditions and the superdsion of nines, whereby the pro-
portion of accidents to the number of men employed and to the aumount of coal pro-
duced, has been greatly dininished. '

Some of the first requirements to better safcguard life and property were
that tie men in direct charge of mines should have Certificates of Competency, show-
ing their fitness for the position they were to fill, the usc of the furnace for
ventilation was abolished and the nine fan used in its stcad, inspection of mines
for firc damp and other dangerous conditions, the use of scofety lamps in place of
the old tallow candle in gaseous mines, regulations regarding the use of powder, and
special rules made by the mine owners as a protection to life and property.

In Great Britain, in the year 1850, the output of coal was about 50,000,000
tons, and deaths fron accidents exceeded 1000 in the year, which would nean one life
for every 50,000 tons of coal produced, while in recent ycars this percentage of
fatel accidents has very much decreased in that country. We find, according to the
report of Sccretary Lene of the Interior Department, that in the United States the
fatal accidents in coal mines for the year 1915, was the lowest in the last eight
years, and the report shows that 228,799 tons of cozl was produced for every life
that was lost. The number of fatal accidents being 2264 for that year, the fatality
rate per 1,000 men employed was 2.95 wihich is the lowest since the year 1828. The
total output of coal in the United States for the year 1915 was 518,000,000 tons.

The greatest improvement that has been affected in the working and managing
of mincs has been in rcceant ycars, and is due partly to thce laws passed by the
various State Legislatures, and the appointment of State Mine Inspectors, and hy the
special and gencral rules laid down by thc various coal companies for thc conduct
of tbe nines, and special rules defining the duties of the various employeecs, both
outside and inside of the minecs.

Although much has been done in recent years in regard to nore improved methods
of ventilation, bctter systcms of working the mines, more up to date haulage systens,
and in protecting the miners and others against accidents, yet we find that accldents
continuc tu happen.

The continued heavy mortality, due to accidents in spite of the good cffccts
of the various legislative enactments, and the special rules made through the various
coal coupanies themselves, was probably responsible for the establishment in 1910,
by the United States Government, of the Bureau of iMines, & part of whose duty it is
to find out and rcport on the causes leading up to the various accidents in aines,
and if possible to furnish a remecdy for them.

In recent years, most of the States where there are coal mines have caused
legislation to be passed making it necessary for the men in actual charge of the
mines, -to have several ycars of practical experience in miaes, and also compelling
them to pass an examination ond reccive a certificate, before they can act in the
capacity of Minc Foreman or Fire Boss; in other words, thcese men are exzpcected to
show by this cxamination that they are not only practical mincrs, but that they eare
studcnts of mining and understand proper methods of mining, which, if put in force,
will give chance for fewer accidents.

The chiof causes of mine accidents are: Falls of roof or coal, explosions
of gas or dust, accidents caused by mine cars or machinery, electric shocks, shaft
accidents duc in coursc of hoisting, or men falling dowm the shaft, accidents caused
By horsecs snd mulas, and froa various other causes.
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The chief source 'of personal ‘accidents, which is fall of roof or coal, is
oftén the result of ignorance or carelessness. on the part of the miner himself.
There is & natural tendoncy on the part-of thé miner to postpone the sctting of
necessery timber until he has finished loading his coal, or at least until he hns
loaded cnother car of cocl, and he is thus exposed to the danger of falling roof
while cleaning up his place. HNeglect to properly sprag the coal while undermining
the sane often causcs accidents. Accidents due to the movement of cars and machin-
ery are often due to neglect to sprag the cars, allowing them to attain too high a
rate of speed, or from derailment of cars while moving, and these accidents may be
greatly lessened by proper care and diligence on the part of those employed in or
about the mine, and by those in charge of the movement of the cars, or the machin-
ery. Accidents duc to falling hoisting shafts may result cither from carelessness
or from the breaking of ropes, etc. Accidents caused by the explosion of gas and
dust, may be largely avoided by maintaining an ample ventilating system, prohibiting
the chonce for accumulations £ gas, either in the working places or in the finished
and ocbandoncd places, by care in the daily inspection of the workings, and use and
proper handling of explosives, the use of approved safety lanps where such are re-
quircd, and the use of a good sprinkling system whereby the floor, sides and roof
of all placcs inside the mine arc kept in a wet or damp condition, so that no dust
is allowed to accurmlate in any part of the mine workings.

While in this State, we may not be directly interested in hoisting shafts,
yet I will give you as an illustration, the safety with which shaft woric is conduct-
ed. At two collierics in South Wales, 1200 men have been lowered snd raised a
distonce of 430 yards or 1290 feet, for an average of four and one-~half days a weck
for 18 and 20 years in the two pits, representing the passage up and down of nearly
6,000,000 nen in that time, during which there was not a single accident.

When the Burcau of Mines was first established, the most urgent wori before
it wees the investigation of the causes and possible prevention of gas and dust
expleosions in coal mines. This was done by mine investigations, by chemical 2nd
physical tests in the laboratory, and such preventive ricasures as experience hos
suggcsted. For conducting large tests with inflannmable gas and coal dust, an cxperi-
ment wine was nede at Bruceton, necar Pittsburg, Pa., in which these tests were made.
They proved contlusively that not only could an explosion bu causeé€ by gasses, but
that coal dust raised into the air and when ignited might ccuse mine explosions
more widespread and terrible than fire damp. This fact was doubted by many mining
men, but was proven by large experiments at this experimentael mine. Coal dust from
hindrzds of mines in different coal fields were tricd and experiments were made. I
might state that the explosability of coal dust in the State of Utch has boen known
for & greit many yesrs, and as far back as the year 1889 a complete sprinkling
gystcz was put in the Castle Gate mine of the Utak Fuel Company, by which cvery
accessible part ot the mine, both woriing places and finished places would be reached
by men carrying rubber hose, used for the purpose of connecting with the water pipes,
so that every accessible part of thec mine could be sprinkled by men whose duty it
was to do no other work than this.

This, I believe, was the first mine in this country in which a complete water
systen was installed, and the entire open part of the{minc sprinkled by men whose
business it wus to do no other work but this. L

In nn article by ir. Van H. Manning, Dircctor of the Burcau of Mines, he
states that tcstc are being made to determine the efficicncy and cost of rendering
coal dust inert by using rock dust in a comaercial mine. About 2000 feet of entry
in this mine was sprinkled with linestone dust, and was inspected every two wocks
by onc of the Burcau's Engincers to determine to what extent the Rock Dust had been
contaminated by coal dust, and the results, so far, indicatc that unless rmuch coal
is spilled along tinc roadway, this method will give better protection against coul
dust-uxylosions, and under the conditions tried, may be cheaper than the use of woter
on a large scale.

It has often been thought thut the use of impropor ecirplosives has ceused
nany mins cxplosions. To do away with this danger, "permissible explosives" that
have quick, short flames have beca put into practice. Those explosives arc much less
1likely to ignite gas or dust than the flames of Black Powder or Dynanite. Ho lmomn
explusion has been caused by the use of "pernissible explosives", and the use of then
makes ciaing much safer where gases are given off or in a dusty mine.

In the coal mines at the presont time we have a great many men of foreisn
birth, who do not understond tne Fnzlish lanmuage, and who never worked ia mines
until thev ceme to this country. It is the duty, therefore, of thnc mine oificizls,
particulorly the !Minc Forcman, lirc bosses, und mine inspcctors, to instruct tlose
pen iu such things as will tznd tc their own safety, as well as to the snfely of the
entirc nine, and the efforts of tuzse parties will be the ncans of reducing tke
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While:the matter of revising our State Mine-Laws is being discussed, and it
4s.possible that. they may need revising-due to the:introduction of electricity into
our mines for the.purpose of lighting the passége-ways, undercutting the coal, firing
the shots, hauling the coal from the face of the working places, causing numbers of
wires o become bare and insulated to be used in carrying or conducting the electric
current so that this work can be done, yet I believe that if our present State Laws
were properly carried out, together with the rules laid down at the various mines,
and adhered to by all concerned, that many accidents which now occur would be
avoided . Most accidents that occur daily in the mines are not due so much to the
lack of legislation as to the lack of obedience and the closer obscrvance to our mine
rules and regulations.

In coming down to the accidents that occur in our own mines from time to time,
we know that thers is much work to be done, and no one is better prepared than our
mine foreman, firebosses, inspectors and other officials who visit the various work-
ing places once, and in some cases, twice a day, to see that this work is done well.
It should be the duty of these officials to watch out for dangerous conditions, to
see that thc mines are kept in safe condition, that the State Mining Laws are carned
out, and that the special rules of the mine are enforced as well as to instruct the
miners and schow them the necessity of protecting themselves, so thoat the slogan of
"Safcty First" may be carried out by all concerned, and thus show & decrcase in acci-
dents in our mines.

In figuring on the percentage of accidents from various causcs, the report
from onc State shows that for a period of ten ycars, 60 per cent of all fatal acci-
dents were caused by falls of roof or coal, 15 per cent were due ‘to mine cars and
machinery, 14 per cent to explosions of gas and dust, 3 per ccnt to explosions of
powder, 7 per cent to falling down shafts, killed by mules and from other causes,
and 1 per cent was caused by electric shocks.

Referring to the last ten fatal accidents that have occurred in our own
Statc, from the information I have received, six of these or 60 per cent, were
caused by falls of roof or coal. The mine foreman, fircboss, or other persons who
notify the workmen of dangerous conditions, have no knowledje of the accidents that
are prevented by their warning.

There is no doubt but that a closer and more careful inspection of the work-
ing places would bring a better and more strict enforcement of laws and regulations
by our officials. The miners' realization of the dangers attending their daily
work .and their own efforts to reduce accidents, the more liberal use of thc mine
prop where noeded, the sprinkling of all accessible parts of the mine so that every
place is kept in a wet or damp condition, the proper distribution of the ventilating
currcnt, so that all places are kept clear of smoke and other noxicus gases, the
proper use of permissible powder and proper tamping of the same and a spirit of
coopcration on the part o all concerned, will show a big improvement and therecby
materially lecssen the number of accidents in our mines.

EXPLOSIONS IN COAL MINES

To get at this subjoct so that it can bs understood, it must be remcmbered
that all coal beds in their natural state contain a very explosive ges known as
"pethane". This gas is odorless, colorless and tasteless and it will not explode
in its pure stato. It is nccessary to mix free air with it. Any nixturc under 5%
gas and 95% cir will not explode. Any mixture between 5% and 13% will explode. Any
mi- turc over 13% will not explode.

Most mine explosions are cuusced by the presence of this methane gas. It is
lighter than air and whon it escapes from the coal it collects in the holes in the
roof of the nine. In order to nake the mine safe it is neccessary to force a current
of air thru these places sufficient to dilute it to a mixture that has less than 5%
gas. It is then safc to move it out thru the air ways to the outside. If this gas
is purnitted to remain in the mine and in some way come in contact with an open
flame lamp or an eleciric arc, it will oxplode and the extent of the explosion will
be governcd by the amount of gus present. When the gas explodes in a dry and dusty
minc ihe coancussion of the gas explosion will throw the coal dust into suspension
in tre air and it will in turn beccme iznited and cause a general explosion through-
out tac nine. In an oxplosion of this kind very fow people escepe alive. There are
severzl ways to detcct the presence of this gas. In placcs where it is known to
exist, the old method was to go in and burn it before therc was cnough to cause an
explocion. The nodern method of testing for gas today is with a flame safety lamp.
This lanp is so constructed that it can be placed in any mixture with safety when it
is in the hands of an experienced man. When this is done a small blue cap will appear
on tcy of the rcgular flame of the lanp. The explosibility of the mixturc can be
deternined by the size of this blue cap. There are other nechanical devices for the
Andantima AP ean in Annl nines. but thevy have not cone into geaeral use.



- When an explosion takes place in a miney all of the oxygen in the air is
burned and this is the cause of another various dangerous gas imown as Carbon Monox-
ide. One breath of this gas is sufficient to kill any person. This gas makes it
practically impossible to recover bodies after an explosion. The breathing of me-
thane by a human being is not dangerous and he suffers no ill effects from it.

A great many things are being done to prevent mi-2 explosions that were not
done a few years ago. In mines that give off gas, more care is teken of the venti-
lating system. Rock dust is being hauled into the mine and mixed with the coal °
dust. The idea of this practice is as follows: The rock dust will not burn and
enough of it is used to prevent the flame from traveling from one particle of coal
dust to another. All of the mines in Utah are required by law to sprinkle with
water all of the dry places. By so doing, the dust is kept wet and will not easily
be thrown into suspension. This dust will not explode while piled along the track
or in a working place. ‘

King No. 1 mine is a very safe mine from a gas standpoint. It is located
high up on the mountain, all of the cracks and crevices in the strata over the coal
being free from water, and in ages past the gas has escaped through these cracks.
In other locations where gas is present, they are usually driven under the rivers
and streams. The water has a tendency to keep the cracks and crevices sealed and
the gas cannot e:cape. '

THE SCOFIELD MINE DISASTER

The following information was taken from the "History of the Scofield Mine
Disaster", by J. W. Dillecy.

The terriblec calamity of Tuesday, May 1, 1900, in No. 4 Mine at Winter
Quarters: 5

May Day, or Dewey Day, dawned bright and clear, when about two hundred mincrs
left Scoficld for the mines in the miner's coach that is run back and forth at the
changc of shifts, to the mines of the Pleasant Valley Coal Company at Winter Quar-
ters. Every onc of the men that was soon to meet death iu its most horrible form
was feeling in the best of spirits as evidenced by the pleasant joke that was
bandied back and forth through the coach. What had they to fear? Were they not

" working in onc of the safcst coel mines situated in the coal region? Each one wes

looking forward to the ecvening when there was to be & dance in the new 0dd Fellow's
HaIl, and their children were to have a cclebration in honor of the Hero of the
Battlc of Manilla.

Nearly every man was at ais post of duty in the minc when from some cause or
other, a most terrific explosion took place and all was changed in the twinkling of
an eyc. : .

At about fifteen minutes past ten o'clock the surrounding country was startl-
ed by an explosion, but as it was "Dewey Day" nearly everyone supposed that the
noisc wus caused by someone setting off a blast in honor of the day.

But soon women were seen hurry¥hg toward the mine and by their blanched faces
one cculd read that there was something amiss at the mine. Reports came from them
that Number 4 had exploded, but this was not believed as this mine in particular was
considered to be the safest mine of all the Company's mines. But disaster dire and
dreadful had overtaken Number 4. The miners were confined with no chance of cscipe,
caught likc rats in a trap. No hope to recover anyone alive, no hope to ever look
upon the living faces of those entombed.

A relief committce was soon formed and headed by T. J. Parmley, Superintendent
of the mine, started for the levels of Number 4 through Number 1, there being inside
conncetions. They were driven back by the terrible after-damp that had by this tinme
reached the levels of No. 1. The route by the way of No. 1 having been found im-
practicable on account of the after-damp and the committice hurried to the mouth of
No. 4 where the attempt was again made to enter the inferno that raged within.

ttenpts were made mony times before the zctual rescue work began. Hope had
boen entertoined that some of the men, especially in No. 1, would be found 2live
but the farther the rescuers went, the nore apparent becaue the magnitude of the
disaster. Men were piled in heaps, burned beyond recognition.

Aftor a time the dead men were brought to the mouth of No. 1 by car load,
sometimes as many as twelve bodies being loaded upon one uine car. Then it was that
the Lorror of the situation began to dawm upon the people on the outside of the ill-
fated mine. Then it was that the people realized that it was impossible to expcct



anything but the burned or méangled bodies of &zmd ones that bad entered the mine
80 light-hearted that morning.

The boarding house, the meeting.house,“tﬁe school lmilding, and the barn all
were cleared out and used as receiving rooms and washing rooms.

A total of 199 men were killed and 7 injured seriously. 103 escaped from
No. 1 uninjured and only 1 escaped uninjured from No. 4, most of the men in No. 4
being killed by forcc and heat while more than 100 mea in No. 1 were suffocated by
after-damp which swept down from No. 4.

An inquest was held upon the body of Jom Hunter. The jury found the verdict
as follows: That death was causcd through an explosion in No. 4 mine while in the
employ of the Pleasant Valley Coal Company. The explosion was caused by a hecavy
shot igniting the dust.

Gomer Thomas, State Mine Inspector, said "I inspected the mines here on
March 8, 1900, and found them in fair condition. The ventilation was good and the
mine was free from gas. In my estimation the disaster was caused by a heavy shot
of giant rowder or loose powder exploding. The giant powder went off, being the
result of a dust explosion. I went to a place wherc it was claimed they had powder
stoved away, and the place showed that the explosion had started there and showed
further by the action of the explosion and by the body that was found there that it
was burncd more than the other bodies which we found. In March, at thc time of the
examination of the minc to check the ventilation, I found the Pleasant Valley Coal
Company had complied with the law."®

One hundred and fifty bodies were buried in Scoficld, the others being sent
to all parts of the state and eight outside of the state. There are abcout 125
graves on a tract a little over an acre in size. The other 25 are in various parts
of the ccmetery being in the midst of those of the same families who had gone be-
forc. All the caskets in Salt Lake City were not enough to bury the dead and a car-
load was ordered. from Denver, Colorado.

There were left 107 widows and 268 orpixins. Sons were killed leaving aged
fathers and mothers. Brothers lost their lives lcaving unmarried sisters and younger
brothers to live as best they could.

The Scofield Mine Disaster was truly the most dreadful calamity that evcr
occurred in the Western county.

THE BUILDING OF THE DENVER AND RIO GRANDE WESTERN RAILROAD IN UTAH

e T R~ et e e

The nortion of thc Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad in Utah was eon-
structed as 2 narrow gauge eastward from Sclt Lake City when the Utah and Pleasant
Valley railway (The Calico rcute) extending from Springville to the coal mines in
Pleasunt Valley, was purchased.

On August 1, 1882, a line was completed from Clear Creek (Tucker), a station
on the Utah and Pleaaant Valley railwey, via Soldier Surmit to a point at the
junction of Fish Creck with the Price river, called Plcasant Valley Junction (Colton).
In October 1882, it was decided to scrve the Pleasant Valley from P. V. Junction
(Colton) rather than from Clear Creek, and thus avoid the operation of twc lines
ovcr the Sumnit of the Wasatch Range. Accordingly, by December 1, 1882, a linc was
constructed from P. V. Junction following up the course of Fish Crcek to a connection
with the original Utah and Pleasant Valley Railway about 2 1/2 miles north of Sco-
field.

The extension from P. V. Junction (Colton) to the Utah-Colorado border was
conploted April 8, 1883, and & division terminal consisting principally of an
eleven stall brick enginchouse was constructed at P. V. Junction. At the time of
this construction the only station appearing between Farnhom and Castle Gate was
one ctlled Castle Vnlley, and it is not clear whether this so-called "Castle Valley™
referred to the present town of Price or some station in the vicinity of the present
town of Helper. In 1887 the station of Price secmed fairly well established, but
thore still was a station called Castle Valley between Price and Castle Gute. It is
quite probable, although not entirely supported by authentic records, that the ori-
ginal "Castle Velley" was some station at least in the vicinity of the present town
of Helper. This station of "Castle Valley" occurs in the records as late as
Decenber 31, 1887+

The line was standard gauged in 1830, and the first reference to "Helper
Terminal™ appears in the annual report for the fiscal year ending June 20, 1892,
during which ycar a new dcpot, hotel for trainmen, new coal chute, roundnouse and
~t1hanen wara aanetrictad. Deeds for the land purchased at Helper ate dated 1891,
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and cne of these was 2 conveyance frou th;iﬁelpéigibwnsite Conpany. It thﬁs,appears
- that.if it were originally called "Castle Valley" or if it were an entirely new

- station, the name "Helper" surcly was spplied to the location at the time.standard
gauging wos. effected, or in 1890, ... By o - : :

: j :

After the construction of the division terminal at Helper, which evidently
occurred in 1891, the use of the terminal previously constructed at P. V. Junction
or Colton was abandoned. Subscquent to the original ins*allation of facilitiecs at
Helper, almost all were augmented from time to time. The amount of trackage grew
rather gradually. The first dwellings for employeecs were constructed in 1897, and
the chapel was constructed by the railroad company in 1899. As the requirements
grew, additional dwellings for employeces and additions to hotel accommodations were
installed. The Y. M. C. A. building was erected in 1906.

Due primarily to the rapid development of the coal industry in Carbon County
and the complexity of operation attendant thereon, the division terminzl was moved
from Helper to Soldier Summit in 1919, and duc to the subsequently changed condition,
it was returned to Helper in 1929 where railroad facilities were greatly expanded to
accomnodate its location at that point.

The above information was given by Arthur Ridgeway, Chief Engineer of the
D. & R. G. W. at Deaver, Colorado.

BRIEF HISTORY °
PRICE

Price, the County seat, is located in the central part of Carbon County, 125
miles southeast of Salt Lake City on the main line of the Denver & Rio Grande Rail-
road. The elevation is 5700 feet. From a few sod-roofed dugouts built in the late
winter of 1879, Price has growmn to a population of 4,88l in 1930. Many residences
and a score or more of business blocks now dot the places where formerly were tu be
found sagebrush and prairie dogs.

The early pioneers, all of whom had settled along the Price River during
1879, were Caicb B. Rhodes, Frederick E. Grames, Charles Grames, followed later by
Levi Simmons, William Z. Warren, Thomas Caldwell, Robert Powell, William Davis,
James Gay, John A. Powell, Sarah J. Powell and Lyman Curtis. "Rhodes had visited
this section of the country a few years previously, hunting and trapping, and un-
doubtedly he saw a future development". In these early days much of the food con-
sisted of wild game,and many a meal of vehison only kept the pioneers from starving.

From this early beginning, and true to the type of early Utah settlers, these
homeseckers set about to build a town and to bring the natural resources to their
aid in so doing. Located on the edge of the desert with insufficient rainfell to
maturc their crops, one ‘of the first things they nceded was water. By cooperative
work and laboring under many hardships when oftentimes the only food the men had
to eat was bread and onions, they dug their first irrigation ditches. Pioneer
ditchcs No. 1 and No. 2, were laid out and completed under the direction of Grames,
Rhodes, Powell, cnd Warren, but every man in the community did his part in build-
ing them. Later in 1880 Grecen Allred and George Downard built the Allred ditch.
Far-sccing rmen soon realized that these minor irrigation projects would not supply
the zrowing necd for water and the Price Water Compuny's Canal was begun in March
1884, ond finished in 1888. This work cost more than twent; thousand dollars. Since
that time the Price River Water Conscrvation District has cmalgamated all the minor
projccts and all water is now distributed under its direction. This has been made
possible by thc construction of the Horsley Dam in Scofield Valley, which has direct-
ly benzfitted both Price and the surrounding territory. The many canals carrying the
precicus water to the many thriving fields is indecd an interesting contrast to the
hauling of water in barrcls as the pioncers of the valley did during those days in
the early years before the ditches were built.

Price has made its greatest growth in the past twenty-five years although
the eurly settlers incressed steadily in numbers due mostly to an influx of other
komc-seckers who came soon after the original grovp. £fAny settlers who arrived be-
fore the closc of 1885 may be classed as Price Pioncers. This group includcs many
now proainent in the history of' the eity and the reader is referred to the histori-
cal sunmzry in the Revised Ordinances of Price City, 1824, for a complete list as
submitited by Erncst S. Horsley, onc of the Pioneers.

Price towmsite was survoyed and laid out in November 1882. - The first frame
building was erectad by Frederick C. Grames, who established a store with a stock
of goods purchascd from a construction contractor of the D. & R. G. Railroad.

The real growth of Price began with the coming of the railroad. Grading for
the railroad, which was started in March 1881, was completed from "Deseret" just



- east of Greenriver, to Ogden in 1883. The first train services were started over
this line in May, 1883, At this time "Castle Valley Station®, as it was previously
called, was changed to "Price". One story has it that it was so called for Colonel
Sterling G. Price who, early in the llexican War, completed the conquest of California
and in 1848 won a decisive voctory over the Mexicans at Santa Cruz de Rosales, thus
earning a place among the national heroes of those days. Anothcr account of the
origin of the name is that it was named for Bishop William Pricc, of Goshen, Utah,
who explored this region after the abatement of the Indian troubles, and following
::t the request of onc of his daughters that he namemy new stream he might tind on

s trip. v

With the coming of the railrouad also came the demand for the establishment
of a post office. Mail had previously been oddressed to paints in Utah County and
had, at one time, becn brought over the mountnins from Sanpete to Huntington. The
first postoffice was opened August 30, 1883, with Frederick E. Grames in churge. The
old post office building was located west of the railroad tracks near the presant
ice plant. Subsequently mails have been distributed from various buildings rcated
for thc use of the government business, until 1931 when the magnificent Federal
Building was erected. This postoffice serves not only Price but also much surround-
ing territory because it is the distributing point for the mail scrvice to Uintah
basin, Enmcry county, and local routes.

The Price town government was organized at a meeting held at thc Emery County
Court Housc on July 14, 1832. At that time Carbon County was not organized. The
petition for the organization of the town carried forty-nine signatures and rcpre-
sented a pepulation of three hundred eight persons. Alpha Ballinger presentec the
petitica to the Court and was instrumental in carrying it to a2 successful culmina-
tion. Oz November 8, a general election resulted in the selection of Jawues H.
Whitaore, Meyor, and Arthur W. Horsley, Henry G. Mathis, Jom H. Pace, and Seren
Olsen, as trustees. Mr. Ballinger became the first clerk and treasurer. As tine
passed Emest S. Horsley, L. M. Olsen, Rueben G. Miller, Arthur J. Lec, Arthur i.
Horsley, and Frank Olsen scrved Price as Town Presidents. Arthur W. Horsley, W.
Frank Olsen, Carlos Gunderson, Geo. A. Wootten, L. A, McGee, V. W. Jones, Jumes W.
Loofbourow, C. H. Madscn and W. F. Olsen have cach in turn been Mayor of the City.
Many of these men have served two or more terms. The present mayor is R. E. West.

The vision of the early settlers extended to the field of education and the
first public school was established in the home of HMathew Simmons in 1883, with
Selly Ann Olsen as instructor. Price school district was organized in 1884 with
William H. Branch, George W. Eldridze and Jom D. Leigh as trustces. The log mcet-
ing house was used as & school house until 1885 when a special levy cnabled the con-
munity to ercct a three-room adobe building. The lumber used was brought from tie
Thayn saw mill in Soldicr Canyon. An eight-room brick building, which wis corpleted
in 1904 was destroyed by fire after being used for eleven years, aad was reploced
by the present Price Ceatral school. While the letter was being constructed, school
was held in the Public Library, the Court House, City Hall, and cxtre rooms of the
Carbon HMigh School. From a humble beginning through a period of ycurs the schocls
of Price have developed into a syster including three clecmentary school buildings,
one parochicl school and the Carbon High School. At present, more than 1700 pupils
attend schocl<in Price City. The frice schools arc now & part of the Carbon County
School District organized in 1915. Under this organization large numbers of clemen-
tery pupils are transported to the Price schools from outlying farm communities and
all senior high pupils »f the county attend the Carbon County High School.

The ecclesiastical history of Price has been most closely connccted witi its
evolution in other lines. The carly pioneers were Latter Day Saints and held their
neetines in o bowery end in various homes until "in January, 1884, the pccple bc—_
gan tie building of 2 log meeting house twenty fecet wide and forty feet long. This
building was used for Sunday Service, schoolroom and courthouse for many yoars."
There are now four churches in the city, each having a lerge membership. _The Lotter
Day Saints is perhaps the largest. The price Community (Mcthodist), thc Notre Dome
de Lordes (Catholic) and the Greek Orthodox (Hellenic) churches have beautiful
structures in which to worship. The L. D, S. Tabernucle, which is used for Stake
and Ward purposes, is perhaps the most pretentious building in the city. Its large
auditoriun is in great demand for commnity gatherings of various kinds.

Many civic clubs, such as the Chanmber of Commerce, Rotary, Kiwanis, B.P.W.,
Sorosis, Tomans' Club, and others bave assisted the city in reaching its present
development.

Price is an up-to-date municipality with every conveaience of the large city
except street car service. Paved streets, electric lighting, spring drinking water,
and iaviting parks are to be found within its borders. Playgrcund equipacni cngzges
the leisurc hours of the children, and the summer months find the municipal swimming
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. poal teeming with young and old. Various activities are encouraged and Price City -
-assists its many civic organizations to’ care fbrﬁ&ha recreational life of its young
people. " One of the best tennis courts in- the state is owned and operated by the
city under the direction of the park superintendent. | ~

HELPER

Helper is so named because its geogrephical location features importantly in
the transporting of trains over the steep incline of the Wasatch range to Soldier
Summit, is a thriving railroad center and tra point for 26 mines lying within a
radius of forty miles and is aptly known as the Hub of Carbon County . The towm is
located seven miles northwest of Price and three miles south of Castle Gate, at an
elevation of 5,840 feet.

Although the vicinity was well known to prospectors, traders, and travelers,
the first settler is known to have been Teancum Prett and his two wives, Sarah and
Annie, who came in 1870 to prospect in the coal regions of Spring Canyop where
Sarah's father, Tom Rhodes of Salem, owned property. For msny ycars the three lived
in a dugout, this scction being lmown as part of Ewell. Pratt eventually owned
practically the entire district and to this day the town is platted out according to
Pratt's survey. In 1883 Pratt sold property to the D. & R. G. Railroad for the
establivhment of rail facilitics in this district.

Before the building of a station a spur was built to this section from the
mgin linc, which was "narrow gauge", and a box car was set out for the station and
called Pratt's Siding. In 1890 the railroad became standard gauge. During the
year 1892 a new depot, hotel for trainmen, new coal chute, roundhouse and oilhouse
were constructed. The top floor of the depot was converted into a library and bill-
iard room for the men and rcmained so until 1906 when the Helper Railroad Y.M.C.A.
was built. It became quarters for Division officers. For over 20 years Julius
Sheppard scrved as secretary of the Railroad "Y" and became onz of the best known and
beloved characters along the entire system.

A family by the name of Taylor Wilson is reputed to have aected the first
home. Thc first schoolhouse, used for six months in 1891, still stands, just north
. of the present school building. The little adobe house is now on the Dominic Bergera

property.

One of the most interesting characters of early commmity life was Tom, the
Chimeman, whose life was indelibly mingled with the history of local railroad build-
ing. Tradition pictures Tom as a hero, he having saved the rights of the company
by his timely warning of some dire plot, the exact nature of which has beecn losi in
the past. At any rate, the old Chinuman, reputed to have been Mayor of Hongkong
earlicr in his life, was given a lifetime job as mail carrier and he treasured his

- position as a sacred trust. About 1918 he went back to China and little was known
of him thereafter. '

Intecresting early settlers were Ed Jones, J. Henry VanNatta, George Ladd,
James i{cCombs, J. Tom Fitch, Pete Smith, J. B. Milburn, Jim Rooncy, Cad Thomas,
Joe Hogh, Jim McCune, Charley Johnson, and John Good..

With the growth of the railroad center, local sentimcnt favored a change in
the name of the town to distinguish it from Ewell. Some of the early settlers
favored naming the town Welby in honor of the general superintcendent of the railroad
but Mr. Welby suggested the name of Helper as more appropriate since at this point
the extra or "Helper" engine is added to dispatch trains up the heavy Soldier Summit
gradc. In 1892 the town was created out of the northern part of Ewell precinct and
Helper school and road districts were established by the order of the County Com-
mission.

J. Tom Fitch, one of the well known early scttlers, erected the first two-
story frume house in 1891. A portion of the building remains at the rear of the
American Candy ComPuny building.

Early trading was done ut the Wasatch Store at Castle Gute or at Price. Mrs.
James icCombs, a resident of the present community, estsblished a restaurant on the
location now occupied by the Merchant's Cafe. Her remimiscences contain many
fascinating stories of old time prospectors, iradcrs and railroaders. A typical
incident is here given. On thc morning of the Vasatch store robbery in 1898, "Gun-
play" Clarence L. Maxwell, a ring-leader of u roober trio, and his companions had
breakfost at her teble. The men had just securcd seversl thousznd dollurs from the
Castle Gute pay roll and an indication of the cxtent of their haul is showm in the
intcresting tale that they pourcd out the silver moncy, concerning themseclves only
with currcncy. They were ncver approhended.



Another fascinating sidelight of early hiéibny is told by Mrs. McCombs who
recnlla%gbe,tinn_;pe plans forwastablishinggtho:ggnnty&aaatbin Helper were completed,
with the exception of purchasing the site for tha courthouse. These plans were
foiled whon J. B. Milburn, owncr of the desired property, asked too high a price
for the land, so the county seat was taken to Price. , iy

A merchant by the name of Van Tromp established the first géneral mcrchandise
store in 1897. The first post officc was located in a small house which still stands
on the J. Tom Fitch property.

The ?arly education of Helper's children was gained in a log house, or adobe
building, with heat. provided by fireplaces and stove. Crude benches were used for
seats. Early school teachers werc Miss Parrott, Miss Corey, and Miss Webb.

In 1893 the school district obtained the premiscs now occupied by the Helper
State Bank, and a smzll building was erccted for educational purposes and used un-
til 1899 when the railroad company built the cnapel and gave the use of the base-
ment for school rooms. The smaller pupils occupied one large room, and the advanced
pupils werc kept in the main street location until 1900. The following year the
chapel bascment was divided into three roous and the entire school was housed there.
With hot water and steam heat the place was considered quite modern. School con-
tinued thus until 1909 when the present building was aected. Since that tine addi-
tions have been made to care for the increased enrollment.

During October 1307, Helper township was regularly organized and incorporated.
The first officers werc J. Tom Fitch, President of the Town Board, and W. C. Brocker,
J. H. Harrison, Steve Gianotti, and Louis Lowenstcin, Board Members. This proved to
be a civic awakening for the pcople of Helper. A deed to a twenty-foot strip of
ground, along Main strect was secured, fences along this strip were moved back, tele-
phone poles tuken from the center of the street and main street widened to fifty feet.
The stimulus that this improvement afforded caused people to buy suitable residence
sites and build comfortable and attractive homes. The coaing prosperity of the town
was much in evidence.

As mines opcned in the canyons nearby the importance of Helper as a business
and trading center increased until the towm has rapidly grown and is known as one
of the busiest trading communities in Eastern Utah. Municipal water is pipcd 26
miles through canyons from pure mountains springs; a modern system of electric
lighting, and a telcphone exchange serves the many beautiful homes in residential
districts. Mercnondising establishments are 'varied and moderm in every detzil,
supplying all the needs of a large shopping area. In 1325 the new city was erectecd
end since that time a bcautiful park has been laid out, a swimming pool provided Ly
the Kiwanis club, and other civic enterprises completed.

Presidcnts of the Town Board, since organization, have been Tom Fitch and
W. T. Humilton, with Joseph Barboglio elected the first Mayor, followed by Ben
Moss, F. R. Slopanskey, E. T. Borkenhagen, Al Evans, Charley Bertolino, Glen Ballirn-

ger, and Fronk R. Porter. .

= In 19193 Helper wes changed from a town to a third class city. The population
in 1931 was 3,100, an increase of nearly forty-six per cent in three years: Much

of the recent growth can be attributed to the return of the railroad terminal to
Helper after ten years location at Soldier Summit. In 1930 the old roundhouse vas
abandoned, and a modern enginc terminal established in the lower cnd of Helper, to-
gether with machine shops, a yard trackage of many miles completed for the eccommoda-
tion of coal trains dispatched trom this center, and a large through-freight and
passenger service handled by the local D. & R. G. W. Seventy company houses were also
noved to Helper from Soldier Summit to provide housing facilities for the many rail
employecs and their families, brought to Helper by the division change.

Social life of the comrmnity centers in many fraternal, social and civic
clubs and organizations. Forcnost in the present life of civic efforts is the
Kiwanis Club, whose cfforts brougiit thousands of people to Helper from all county
points and from the Uintah Basin in the celebration of Helper Day, sponsored for the
first time on June 25, 1931. Recently a Chauber of Commerce was organized and'with
a rapidly growing merbersiip and much lively interest, it pronises to be a ?omlnant
factor in the progress of Helper. Local business women are also organized in the
Business and Professioncl Wouwen's Club, which has accomplished much in the promotion
of welfarc work. Churches established locally are the Latter Day Saints, the
Episcopal, and the Catholic. The smerican Legion and Auxiliary are actiyc as are
seven craft organizations in the employ of the railroad company. There is a local
troop of Boy Scouts, and eleven fraternal orders.

At the present time schools are suffering fron an overcrowded conlition.
There cre 640 pupils enrolled in the grade schoolj 40 liclper students attead the
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Tventy-six mationalities cantribute to tho cosmopolitun aspect of Helper popu-~-
lation. Among them are American, Scotch, Irish, English, Swedish, Norwegi-n, Danish,
German, fusirian, French, Spanish, Italian, Assyrian, Gre.k, Chinese, Japancae, Negro,
Hexican, Dutch and Jewish. Huny of the business men and leaders of the community are
of foreign birth but have madily adapted thomselves to Americaan customs and are pro-
minently featured among the most progressive of the commmity.

ROLAPP

\

Rolapp is picturcsquely located at the foot of Castle Rock, at the junction
of the Bear River and Price River canyons on the Deaver and Ric Griende Railroad. It
is approvimately elcven miles nortmiest of Helper &nd one mile northwest of Castle
Gate, at an elevation of 6259.25 feet. The new Pike's Peak Highway, completed in
October 1931, runs through the ceater of the town. A stage line was started in

July 1931 between Salt Lake City and Price. Thms, Rolupp is conveaniently located for
treasportation and communication with Salt Lake City and other State centers.

In 1913 this district attracted the attention of Mr. Frank Cameron, who had
previously developed the Heiner property. The first work began in Rolapp with thirty-
five men employed. Because of its location the camp was appropriately named Bear
Canyon. As the population increesed and the mine prospered, the camp wac given the
name of Camcron, in honor of Mr. Cameron. In 1917, Frank Cameron sold his interest
to Henry H. Rolapp. Again the name of the camp was changed in honor of the new
manager. The Royal Coal Company owned the property until 1930 when they sold their
interests to the Spring Canyon Coal Company.

Rolapp is not incorporated and is, therefore, governed by the County. There
are no parks, amusement halls, libraries or churches. All public meectings and
gatherings are held in the school building. The population varies during the
different times of thc ycar. In the winter it ie much greater beccause of the in-
crease in the amount of work in the minc. One can readily- sce that the present out-
put ir not as great cs it was in previous years, by comparing the population between
the years 1913 to 1920, and thc period of 1920 to 1930. In the first period there
was' an increase of 226 people, while in the latter - a longer period of time - there
was an increase of only 129.

The capacity of the mine, when working full force, ranges from 1,000 to 1,200
tons per day. About forty-four men are employed in the mine and about thirteen cm-
ployed outside. The following nationalities are represented in the town: American,
Austrian, Italian, Greek, and Japanesec. Most of the foreign-born pcople readily
adapt themselves to American customs and habits of living. At the timc when the
mine was booming this was even more pronounced than it is today. At that time the
people were more permanently settled because of the steady work. Realizing that
this would be their home for severzl years they werce more interested in m aking their
homes ccnfortable and attractive. The recent decline in economic conditions has
caused nany residents to move to other localities.

HEINER

Heiner is located in the heart of the mountains at the mouth of Paatlher Can-
yon, on the Price River, and on thc main line of the D. & R. G. Western Railroad,
half woy between Helper and Castle Gate. The clevation is 6023 feet. At prcsent
the population is 28¢ but this fluctuates from time to time depending upon tlie work
aveilable at the Panther coal minc, located a mile north of the village.

In 1911, Frank N. Cameron, a prominent coal ninec operator of Carbon County
began prospocting for coal in this region and was followed by John Crewrford who
later becone the first mine Superintendent. His brother, A. J. Crawford, who en-
listed in the U. S. Army during the World War, and who was the first Carbon County
boy to die in service, was also irtercsted in the development of the new cozl field.
Other early workers were: John Cavania, John Ceteria, Andrew Mininie, Joe Ricardi,
Peto HMilanc, Ernest Juicia, and L'eorge Garavaglia.

Heiner was first called Panther bccause of its location in Panther Canyon,
was later known as Carbon, and finally namcd Heiner in honor of the Vice-President
of the Coal Conmpany. .

To open the Panthcr nmine it was necessary to go through approximetely eighty
feet of burned outcrop before commercial coal was rcached. Coal was first shipped
from Heiner February 13, 1914, by the U. S. Fuel Company. On May 1, 1915, the mine
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was leascd to Frank Cameron and John Crawford, They began with a production of 100
tons of coal per day, and at the end of the lease, April 1, 1918, wcre producing
-500 "tons per day. At the expiration of the lea$e, the property reverted to the U.S.
Fuel Company, which owmed and operated mines at Hiavatha and Mohrhnd, Utah. The
mxxien output of the Panther mine was 700 tons daily, but has now decrcased to less
than 500 tons. At the present rate of production there is enough coal to last for a
nunber of years. )

In the beginning of the carp, tents weré used until frame houses could be
erected. It is now one of thc best housed camps in the district.

School was first taught in 1914 in a small one-room building and was later
renoved to 2 two-room structurc. In 1922 a modern brick building of four rooms was
erected. It is the most pretentious building in camp. There is also a storc and a
postoffice for the convenicnee of the people, but no town crganization, hence the
laws arc enforced by the camp deputy sheriff. Recreation is provided for the pcople
by the school and the wclfare association. Christmas is the most celebrated holiday
of the year.

The population of the canp is quite cosmopolitan, consisting of Americans,
Italians, Grecks, Austriuns, Jugo-Slavs and Czechc-Slovekians. 0ld country habits
and custons are quitc prevalent and are most common at wedding feasta and on special
holidays.

COLUMBIA

The town of Columbia is located approximately twenty-eight miles east of
Price and threc niles eoutheast of Sunnyside. It is a coal mining commurity and is
the property of the Cclumbia Steel Company which is a subsidiary of the United
States Steel Corporation. The mine is operated for the purpose of supplying ccking
coal to the company's by-product coking plant end blast furnaces, located at Ircnton,
near Provo, Utah. .

Construction of the camp was started in 19222. A year later Thomas C. Harvey
took charge as Supcrintendent of operations and through his efforts and foresight
the mine and community have gradually improved until todey it is one of the outstand-
ing communitics of the county. The present population approximates 650 peoople.

The first school at Columbia was held in 2 large tent with Mrs. Amenda
Roberts as instructor. She taught eizht grades with a total enrollment of forty-
nine pupils. In the year 1925 a modern six-room brick building was erected, giving
the town the best of school accommodations. ‘

The latest type of coal mining eguipment has been installed in the Columbia
mine, making the production of 2,000 tons or more a day possible, depending ujon
- demands. In 1930 the entire property was purchascd by the U. S. Steel Corporation.

Columbia townsitc consists of dwelling hcuscs, 2ll of modern construction,
and in czddition there are bunk-houses for the single employees. A store building,
boarding house, confectionery, amusement hall and barber shop supply the community
needs. All buildings are connected to a complete sewer system.

The comrmnity has been greatly improved since construction first started. To-
day there are many fine lawms, trees, and flowers, tennis court and swimming pool.
One of the beauty spots of the camp is the rock garden belonging to Supt. Harvey.
This is built in a picturesque setting on the side of a cliff near his home. At the
foot of the gurden is a small grecnhouse where fine plants are kept during the winter

months.
CASTLE GATE

The town of Castle Gate is situated on the Price River, well up on the eastern
slope of the Wasatch Range. It is a mile below that famed wonder of natural sculp-
ture, the "Castle Rock" from which the town takes its name; and is almost at the
western end of a series of towering sandstone crag: carved in fantastic images known
as the Book Cliffs. At an eclevation of 6,120 feet, but protected by stecp slopes on
cither side, both summers and winters are comparatively mil and equable.

The location of Castle Gate is due to the fact that coal outcrops at a con-
venient height to be screcned and loaded into railroad cars. The D. & R. G. Westcrn
Railroad was under conatruction from 1881 to 1835, and three years after its comple-
tion No. 1 mine was opcned by the Pleasant Valley Coal Conmpany, now the Utah Fuel
Company, and has becn in practically continuous operation since that tine.
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Many years before the west was settled Jedediah Smith, William Ashley, and
Etienne Provost passed through Price Canyon and in all probability explored the
region that is now known as Castle Gate. The explorations of these men are por-
trayed in an intefesting manner in Neibapdt's "Spbndid Wayfaring" which is the
story of Jedediah Smith and his comrades, the Ashley-Henry men, discoverers and ex-
plorers of the great central route from the Missouri River to the Pacific Ocean. In-
asmuch as many of these explorers and early trappers passed through this section of
the country it would be of interest to the student to read of thoir experiences as
portrayed in this book.

This region was given its attractive name by sheepherders when they observed
the striking similarity of the north entrance to thc gate of a protected castle.
They knew very little of the vast wealth underlying the surface excegt that here and
there out-croppings of coal appeared. No development was thought of, however, until
the D. & R. G. showed its faith in the region by ecstablishing a narrow gauge rail-
road through this territory.

The Pleasant Valley Fuel Company, then operating a mine at Winter Quarters,
desired to find a profitable coal bed near the main line of this new route. iIn
1910 they sent their chief engineer, Robert Forester, with a partgof prospectors to
explore this vicinity. The result of their exploration trip was the opening of No.
1 Mine. s

The first settlers who resided here lived in box cars provided by the rail-
road. Some of the oldest residents were Harry World, R. S. Robertson, John Young,
Thomas Recse, Charles Checketts, William Jones and John Platt. The first boy born
in this settlement was Glen D. Reese, on November 11, 1890.

The first school was held in what is now house No. 47. Instruction was
given by James B. Crandzll who was the only teacher. Enrollment increased until
the building was overcrowded and two years later in 1890, school was held in the
L.D.S. Church building. The present structure was erected in 1920.

i The first postmaster was Harry Helson, who was also clerk of the Pleasant

Valley Fucl Company. The first store was located just south of the present building,
and the new structurc was build by World and Robertson in 1890. These men also con-
structed the first tipple just prior to that time.

The opening of the coal field attracted eastern capitalists who acquired more
coal land and changed the name of the conporation to the Utah Fuel Company. The out-
put of metgl ores of Utah created a demand for a high grade of coking coal. This
call was not met by a poorer grade of coke which was being produced from the coal
mine at Winter Quarters, thercfore in 1889 coke ovens were built in lower Castle
Gate and a better grade of coke was produced. The increasing demand for high grade
stove coal mined from No. 1 mine and the knowledge of the large veins adjacent at
Kenilworth, caused the Utah Fuel Company to develop another mine in Willow Creek Can-
yon. They were much disappointed, however, when they discovered that the vein was
only four feet thick. However, the vein was opened and on the main haulage tunnel,
two feet of roof was blasted dowm to give sufficicnt height for the economical
operations of the mine. Later, a diamond drill hole was put down from the surface
and just below this four foot vein, the twenty foot vein of coal was discovered. Con-
nections betwecen the two mines were made by driving a pair of rock tunnels. This pro-
spect proved to be onec of the greatest coal deposits known.

In 1922 No. 3 was opened. It is located on the main line of the D. & R. G.
Western Railroad between Castle Gate and Rolapp and was the only shaft mine in the
West until the mine at Salina Canyon was opened a few years ago.

Castle Gate was granted the petition for the incorporation of a town, March 4,
1914, and held its first mceting April 1, 1914. The following were the first offi-
cers: "President, Robert Williams; Trustees, Andrew Young, Edward Edwards, Levi
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Davis, William Edmond; Clerk, J. C. Snow; Treasurer, Alfred Thorpe; Marshall, J. F. .-

Cory; Quarantine Physicien, Dr. E. M. Nehr. -

First among the social organizations must be placed the Castle Gate Welfare
Association founded under the guardianship of the Utah Fuel Company and maintained
by deductions from cmployees and the coupany. The association concerns itself with
providing amusements, caring for the poor, and many other projects for the general
welfare of the people. The L. D. S. Church and the Union Cmrch care for the
spiritual well-being of the community, as well as assisting in relief work.

The Anusement Hall was dedicated in 1918, In 1919, the $100,000.00 filter
plant was put into operation. In 1920 the present attractive school house was
finished and in 1924 the new building for convenient postal service was opencd for
public use.
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One of the greatest coal mine disasters occurred in No. 2 mine at Willow
Creek, about 8:30 on the morning of March 8, 1923. It was coused from the ignition
of.an accumilation .of gas, which created an appalling dust explosion. This great
calamity rcached cvery part of the mine and caused instant death to 173 miners.

PEFRLEGS

The mining community of Peerless is located three miles west of Helper and
was the first coal camp to be developed in the Spring Canyon district. The eleva-
tion is 6,000 feect.

In the year 1915, 440 acres of land high up on the ¢liffs above Helper were
owned by & group of people from Ogden. This tract had either been overlooked or
rejected by both the Spring Canyon Coal Company and the Utah Fuel Company as mining
property. Since the owvners did not wish to operate a mine they were anxious to se-
cure a purchaser, but with the property so located on a point of the mountain, it
was difficult to determine how far under cover the coal would be burned, a fact
which impcded the sale. However, the Sweet brothers, Charles and Will, took option
on the property and following devclopment work sold it to the mining men, Thompson
and Murdock, of Salt Lake City, Utah.

Dovelopment of the mine followed in rapid strides. A tramway was built to
convey the coal from the steep mountain side to the tipple and coal shipments were
started about 1917. During the boom years of the coal business, from 1917 to 1921,
the coal produced from this mine paid for the project and cleared a bonded indebted-
ness of $400,000.00, and by 1920 the mine was free from any outstanding obligationms.

The coal is now practically worked out and the company has opened a new mine
in Price Canyon just above Rolapp. Robert Howard was the Superintendent of the ncw
mine from first operations, until his death, and great credit is due him for the
development of the new property.

The community of Peerless was conprised of about thirty houses, a storc, an
office, a post-office, a very finc clubhouse for the officials of the company, and
a school house, all bcing well occupied during the life of the camp. About 150 men
were enployed while the property was at its height of production.

NEW PEERLESS

The New Pcorless mine was opencd in 1930 by the Thompson brothers, sons of
the original owmer of the property. The property is on government lease and is
located ~bout a mile above Rolapp in the Price River Canyon, at an elevation of
approximately 6,300 feet. Robert Howard was the first Superintendent.

There cre two large veins of good-grade domestic coal underlying the pro-
perty which was prospected by diamond drill before aevelopment work started. The
outerop cf these veins is at Castle Gate, two miles bolow New Peerless, therefore
the minc had to be opened by an incline driven through the rock. This incline is
driven on a thirty degree pitch, cncountering the upper vein at 1900 fect and the
lower vein at 2300 fect.

A modern tipple is installed on the property and is capable of handling
2000 tone of coal per day. Owing to the general depression from the recent jyears,
the property was closed down in 1931. The large body of coal and its proxiniiy to
the nain line of the D. & R. G. Western Railroad assures a prosperous futurc for
this community as soon as normal business conditions return.

SCOFIELD

The town of Scofield lies in the bituminous cocl fields of Carbon County
about 19 miles from thermin line of the D. & R. G. Rallroad with an elevation of
7,675 fect. Nestled among the hills that surround the upper part of Pleasant
Valley, the town is completely isclated from the rest of Carbon County.

"Pleasant Valley is about six miles long and onc mile wide, practically
all of which is good wild hay land". The early sctilers realized that the luxuriant
growth of native grassces would make splendid pastures so by 1879 and 1880 immense
herds of cattle roancd over the hills znd valleys . The first scttlers who were
attracted by these irmense ranges were: S. J. Harkness, T. H. Thomas, Willians
Burrows, O. G. Kimball, D. D. Grecn, J. W. Metcalf, H. McKechency, and Joseph Castle.
These pioneers had numerous friendly contacts with the Indians. Deer, wild fowl, and
beaver were nlentiful, while the strcams offered excellent opportunities for fishing.
The to.n was aemed in honor of General Scofield who owned 2 ranch in the vicinity
and was an carly timber contractor.



"Scofield has always been connected with the early history of cocl mining
in the State of Utah, and within & radius of three miles there are four mines which
“have beeny-or are now in operation.  They are Hinter Quarters, Utah ¥ine, Union
Pacific Blue Seal, and Kinneoy." : : e

Shortly after the coming of the settlers, coal was discovered. "The hidden
treasures of the mountains were not long to lie hidden, and the discoverers soon
found out that the supply was inexheustible - that coal cropped out on every hand
where veins were worked. The railway companics, finding that the coal fields were
of such magnitude and covered much territory, began to survey for practical routes
to reach the coal. The quiet atmosphere of the cattle men was turned into the
bustle and activity that attends the opening of any new camp of this kind."

The population grew from the few pioneers to a prosperous community of about
80C inhabitants. In 1882 when the railroad was built to the valley, coal shipments
begen from Winter Quarters mine. The coal industiry thrived and developed into a
prosperous enterprise with little difficulty until May 1, 1900, when the Winter
Quarters mine exploded taking as toll the lives of 199 men, many of whom were living
in Scofield at the time. For a detailed report of the explosion see the article
in the preceding pages of this history.

On March 15, 1893, a petition carrying onz hundred names asking for tomn
goverament, was filed and recorded in the couaty.recorder's office at Castle Dale,
Emery County. (The county of Carbon was not organized at that time.) When the
petition was granted the following March, a Town Board was elccted. A. H. Earll
becamc the first President, with Messrs. Kimball, Wright, Lewis, and Krebs as
trusteces. M. P. Braffet was appointed town Clerk and Thomas Lloyd, town Marshal.
School buildings were erccted, an L.D.S. Ward organizod, and the community prosperecd.
Plcasant Vallcy was an attractive place for outings and many people from various
parts of the state came here for summer rocreation.

The first school was a two-room frame building which stood near the city hall
and was rcplaced in 1901 by a nine-room brick building. The latter burned Dec. 18,
1927, which necessitated the holding of school in the church, the city hall, con-
fectionery and the Madsen building. The trains passed within three feet of the
latter building and often school was interrupted by a stranger or tramp who was very
much surprised to meet the grins of the children who enjoyed the joke. The new build-
ing, to replace the one that had burned, was completed for the opening of school in
the fall of 1928. :

Usually winter prevails for at least six months of the year and one can gener-
ally depend upon sufficient snow for winter sports such as skiing, tabogganing, and
'sleigh riding. During the severe winter weather, when the roads are closed tc the
contact of the rest of the county, mail comes in on pack horses, sleds and at times
has been brought on foot.

Scoficld has no doubt seen the peak of its prosperity.  The work in the mines
has decreased, many houses and sties are boarded up, but in spite of all this, the -
commumnity goes on, even though small. The nationalities represented are: Irish,
Welch, English, Danish, Swedish, Scotch, Greeck, Finns, Austrians, Italians, and
Americans.

Pleasant Valley continues to be an ideal place for mmting and fishing.
KENILWORTH

The Kenilworth mining camp is known as one of the most attractive camps in
Carbon County. It is situated in the west-central part of the county in the
Wasatch mountains at an elevation of about 6,400 feet above sea-level. It is 1R0
miles southcast of Salt Lake City, three miles cast of the Ocean to Ocean Highway,
and the same distance from the Price river from which water is supplied. The popu-
lation of the camp varies to some extent with the seasons, increasing in the winter
when the mine works well.

In the early spring of 1904, Heber J. Stowell, a resident of Spring Glen was
hunting horses in the mountains northeast of his home when he saw the large veins
of outcropping coal. Stowell showed samples of this coal to W. H. Lawley, of Price,
who was favorably impresscd, and in 1805 these two men begen prospecting. Mongy
was scarce z2nd the prospecting difficult until James Wade of Price and Fred Sweet
of Salt Lake City became interested and financed the enterprise. Food and supplies
for the prospectors were hauled from Price by Mr. Lawley, who states that while he
was prospecting he lived in a tent which was pitched where the school house now
stands. Onc night the tcnt fell in upon its occupants, because they had neglected to
swecp the snow from the roof during the day. :
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. Mony bardships, as well as dangers, arc encountered in prospecting.- Mr.
Lagley says, "I crept on my bands and knces to got at the coal, as the cliffs were
straicht up and dowmn, above and below. One false move would have been certain death”.

The first development work was done by Lawley and Stowell in Bull Hollow, on
the nortieast side of the mountains. This proved too difficult, so entry was made
on the south side of the mountains where live coal was found on the surface. The
south cntrance was about half-way up the mountainside, makinz a sloping entrance to
the mine. A very stcep tramway lcd from the tunnel down the hill on the outside.
This very steep tramway is not used at the present time due to the fact that a more
accesgible: rock: tunnel, vhich facilititates trackage, was driven in the flocr of the
vein. Some interesting stories are told about this steep incline. Many of the men,
coming home from work would sit on ¢ sled, a shovel or & board placed on the rails,
and after a flying ride would reach the bottor of the mountain.

As the work progressed, a track was laid between tae new mine and the D. &
R. G. Western Railroud at Helper, a distance of three miles. With completion of the
line, coal was shipped out for market. The company soon becaize knovn as thc "Inde-
pendent" because it was the first independent coal coopany in the county of Carbon.
An interesting refercnce of old-world history featured in the sckection of 2 nane
for the new camp. Three peaks rising above the camp reminded the prospectors of the
three spires of the Kenilworth Castle in Scotland, so they nume’ the new town "Kenil-
worth".

) As the work continued and a greater field was opened up, more men were eli-
ployed, among them Joseph Barboglio, a present resident of Helper, President of the
Helper State bank, and one of the wealthiest men in Carbon County.

Stowell engincered and built the first road up to the camp, and water to
supply the inhabitants was first hauled in barrels by wagon and team by Clarence
Stowell, a son of Heber J. Stowell.

The first "dug-out" in Kenilworth was made by Hebter J. Stowell on the nortn-
ecast side. Everyone was not ns fortunate as Stowell, however, for the mine was
making such rapid progress that houses could not be crected immediately and many of
the miners and their families were obliged to live in tents.

Ae soon as it was possible, the boarding houses were built. The fourth house
cast of the present hotel was one of the earliest, and while it was not large, it
served its purpose by accommodating a few. Thrce apartment houses were built - one
for the colored workmen, one for the Japanese, and onc for the other workers. The
Japanese boarding house still takes care of the people of that nationality, but the
others have all served their purpose and arc now used as family residences. The
second house east of the boarding house was at onc time used as sleeping quarters
for the officials. This became Xnown as the Cottage, a name which it still rctzins,
although it has been used as & family residencc for scme years. At a later dectc the
present hotel was built, and still later the annex, which pakes up part of the hotel-
which is now known 25 one of the best in the county.

heross the street from the present school house a residential placevwas used
for educational purposes until the present building was crected. In 1928 crowded
conditions compelled the transportation of seventh and cighth grade children to
Spring Glen wherc a new and modern building was furnished.

In 1907, a grocery store was built, with William H. Brooks as manager. There
was also an Italian store located half a mile from Kenilworth, off compary land, but
everything else was owned by the company. About this time an amusement hall was
erected where shows and dancing were enjoyed. Mr. Lawley directed and staged the
first show given, entitled "Rube and His Ma". In February of 1926, the building was
destroyed by rire and replaced the same year by a morc modern structure consisting
of a theatre, confectionery, library, dance hall, and pool rooms. Equipment for
talking pictures was recently purchased, and the first talking picturc was given

December 13, 1930.

The Boy Scout hall was built by the Italians and used by ther as & dance hall.
Across the road from this now dilapidated building was = saloon, also owned by
Italians but which was destroyed by fire in the fall of 1826. A Greck coffecec house
furnished pastime for some of the inhabitants until. it was also destroyed by fire in

1929.

Improvements continued and the old practice of hauling water in barmds wms
abandoned when thc present system was inaugurated. Water is now taken from the Pr;ce
River, treated witi chemicals at the pump station on the highway betwecen Kenilwortn
and Helper, then punmped into two large tanks above towm.



Roads, too, have been greatly improved from the first rough wagon trails. At
first the road led directly from Price over a very stecep hill known as Price Wood
Hill. Another road led west of town to Helper. The present road leads out of camp
.. betweon these two. This was greatly improved in 1930'when about a mile and a half,

 through Spring Glen, was surfaced with asphalt. 2

In 1926, a new and more convenient railrond from Helper to the mine, was con-
structed to replace the one which passed through the main part of town, and which
eliminated the dangers of the old stecp grade. To make trackage conditions better
and to accommodate a growing market, the sccond tipple was built in 1927, and a
third one built in 1931. The latter tipple is known as the largest coal mining
tipple west of the Mississippi River. On busy days all the tipples are kept busy
loading railroad cars for shipment.

In 1926 the streets of Kenilworth were improved with cement sidewnlks and
curbs slong the entire length of Kenilworth avenue. Trees, which were planted 19
years ago by John Blzckham, Sv., lawn and flowers, all help to make the place very
attractive. Tcnnis courts, a splendid hospital, opportumities for church, all
contribute to the happiness and welfare of the people.

All of the pecople of Kenilworth cooperate to make the community a pleasant
place in which to live. Of the prescat workmen a great number of them arc of foreign
birth - Grecks, Auctrians, Hungarians, Japanese, Italians, and Germans are among the
leading groups. Thesc pcople, for the most part, arc very willing to cnter intc the
American ways of living. Schools, churches, and civic organizations, are grzduually
Americanizing these forcign-born groups. The change, however, cannot be remcdied
rcadily. The growing generation, which is more imericunized, must effect the change.

WELLINGTON

flellington, one of the few farming commmities of Carbon County, is situated
on the Price River six miles southeast of Price. It is conveniently located on the
Pike's Peak Occan-to-Occan Highway and on the main line of the D. & R. G. W. Railroad.

During the autumn of 1879, Jefferson Tidwell, and his son William Tidwell,
end William Averett (Everctte) of Mt. Pleasant arrived in Castle Dale by way of
Cottonwood Creck. Here they met Orange Seeley, sho advised them to go to White
River (now Pricc River) and explorc that section of country. Upon their arrivel at
Pricc River, they met Jemes Bean of Provo, who endeavored to discourage them by say-
ing that the river was dry part of the time, that frost came carly and that the wind
blew severely. However, they explored until their supplies were exhausted. The
first pcrmanent scttlers came to Wellington in 1882, among them were William Barney,
Arthur Barngy, Thomas Zundel, Robert Snyder, Montis Reids, two families of Fzusetts,
Brighom Grundvig, and his son, Severne Grundvig. The mothcr of the boy was stolen
by the Indians during the long journey across the plains.

These pcople, with the spirit of adventurc, which is pronounced in most pion-
cers, came to this region desirous of building homes where land was cheap and feed
was anple for their livestock. The first homes were built along the river but
gradually the boundaries of the scttlement extended as irtigation projccts wore
initiated and more land was made available for use. Canals were built and finally
the land on both sides of the river for many miles was placed under cultivation.
Wellington now reccives its water for irrigation purposcs from the conservation
water project connected with the Scofield Dam. TFor details of the project, sec
article on Irrigation Projccts. Drinking water at {irst was hauled in from & dis-
tanc: of ten to fifteen miles, filtered and stored in barrels, but in recent years
it has been piped from the spring at Colton which also supplies Price with water for
culinary purposcs.

In the early days there were many animals such as the bear, cougar, wild cat,
wolf and coyote which preyed upon the cattle, sheep and horses, making it necessary
for settlers to guard their livestock. At night the howling wolves from the hill-
tops would give signal of approaching danger and the guards were often awakened from
sleep to protect their cattle. These sturdy pioncers faced blizzards, deep snows,
and starvation, but nevertheless in spite of all this, they struggled on wntil the
future for the place was assured.

The settlement was named for Wellington Seeley, an uncle to the Tidwell boys
who live in wellington at the present time. In 13885 an L.D.W. ward wes organized.

The growth of Wellington is duc to increased supply of water which has made
it possible to farm greater arcas. The incrcased number of mining towms in the
vicinity provide the farmers with a rcady markct for their produce. The pepulation
of vWellington is now 546.

Immediately aftor scttling here, the necessity of educational advantages was
considercd and school was held in a stockais on the southside of the river on the
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Thomes Zundel farm with William D. Tidwell as instructor. During the sumer of
18389 ihe stockade burned but school continued, although it was necessary to convene
in W. A. Thayn's' orchard, northwest of the present school building, and in a log

cabin on Robert Snyder's property: This cabin mow belongs to the Daughtors of the
Pionecrs and has boen moved to the L, D.S. church grounds.

The process of education of the younger ganoratian seemed somewhat of a
migratory nature. After one year's session in the new ward house, one room was
built for school purposes only, and in 1895 two more rooms were added. This struc-
ture, which stood across the street south of the ward housc, was dispensed with in
1911 vhen an eight-room building was erected on a hill overlooking the town. In
August 1929, this building was partially burned and could not be used. The school
again took refuge in the L.D.S..church for one ycar and a half until the completion
of the present modern building in December 1930.

Noarly all of the present inhabitants of Wellington arc decendants of the
Northern European peoples.

THE GORDON CREEK DISTRICT

In the Gordon Creck District there are five mines: National, Consumecrs,
Swecets, Great Western, and Gordon Creck. The first three are active. The latter
two have never been mining camps although they have, in the past, produced coal. At
present, they are not operating. Inasmuch as the threc camps arc closcly located,
the social, cducational, and religious activities arc centcred at Consumers, the
largest of the three.

NATIONAL

National is located in the north fork of Gordon Crcek, eighteen miles from

. Price and is next door to the town of Consumers. In 1908 aa engincer, named

Williamson, purchased coal land from the government and started prospecting. How-
ever, very little was accomplished until 1921 when Fred Sweet took over the property
and organized the National Coal Company.

CONSUMERS

Consumers is located in the north fork of Gordon Creck eighteen miles north-
west of Price. The elevation is 7600 feet and the present population 475. Years
ago, this section of the country was unsettled government property traversed by
timber and cattle men, who, intent on their affairs, had little thought of the
changes which were to take place in the future, and had no realization of the wealth
hidden in the mountains.

In 1920, A. E. Gibson, Supcrintendent of the Spring Canyon Coal mine, and
noted for his excellence in prospecting, saw the possibilities in the Consumers
hills. He obtained an analysis of the coal in the district and found that it con-
tained 49¢ fixed carbon, 44% volatile matter, 3% ash, 5.5% moisture, and .5% sulphur.
He began prospecting during the winter of 1921, suffering many hardships, but even
the bitter cold and lack of food failed to daunt his purpose. The following spring
he located a nine-foot vein of coal but had no way of sp%gting development because
the roads were snow-drifted and almost impassable. Alone; he continued prespecting
until he ms certain of the worth of his findings. Later he nired men to assist him
and in spite of crudc implements, scant food and shelter, during the winter of 1922,

they succecded in mining 34 carloads of coal, which werc hauled in wagons over poor
roads to Wild Cat Switch, where they were shipped to prospective stock-holders.

About this time Donald E. Jenkins and J. Tracy Wootton of Salt Lake City, be-
cane interested, bought stock amounting to $100,000.00 and organized the Consumers
Mutual Coal Compeny. Mr. Jenkins, the largest stockholder, automatically becamc the
President of the Company, and lir. Gibson became Vice-President, with Wootton acting
as Sccretary and Treasurer.

During the next few years rapid progress was madc. Immediate preparations
for the building of a railroad were started and the road was completed in 1925, ex-
tending as far as the fork leading to the Sweet's Mine. It became necessary to
build a bridge across thc canyon for the tracks, but funds were lacking and work was
delayecd one year. Vork was resumed when Mr. Raddits bought controlling interest in
the company. From that time on, work on the railroad progressed rapidly.

Although dwelling places were only tents, the men brought their families and
proceceded to make the canp livable. Mrs. Zina Cowley was the first woman to scttle
in the now town. In 8 few months there was a thrifty, busy group of miners in the
heart of the mountains. The problem of education arose and in 1924 Miss Mae Mathis,
and Miss Irene Coots were hircd as teachers. Their places of instruction - a tent
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and a shack - were no examples of modernism. The school contimied in this make-
shift way that yeur until the tent was replaced by another shack., Due to the in-
ecreased cnrollment from NHational camp, another room was built. The threc one-room
buildings were replaced in 1931 by u new modern four-room school. A regilious organi-
zation began scrious work in 1828 and has continued to keep the people interested in
the L.D. S. activities. ) :

In the past ten years the tents have been replaced by modern apartment houses
and waterproof buildings. The first permanent structure was owmed by Jet Alger and
is still usced as a2 boarding housc.

The new coal company chonged the name of the towm from Gibson to .Consumers
as 2ll consumcrs of coal werc mutually interested. The nume of the coal company
has since been changed from Consumers Mutual Coul Company to the Blue Blaze Cosgl
Company, a title typifying the quality of the coal, as suggested by Mr. Gibson. The
canyon has been transformed from a quiet timber section into a bustling, thriving
coal camp, teeming with ambitious citizens.

SUNNYSIDE

Sunnyside is located in the eastern part of the Book Cliff mountains ct the
mouth of Whitmore Canyon, twenty-eight miles southeast of Price. The elevation is
6,716 feet. The total population is approximately 625.

The first settlers in Sunnyside were three brothers - John, Jeff, and William
Tidwecll, cattle men from Wcllington, who discovered coal in this wvicinity about the
yoar 189€. A short time later Robert Forrester camec as a representative of the Utzh
Fuel Company, and purchased, for the sum of $250.00, the land now owned by the Coal
Company. Mr. Forrcster took « samplc of the coal to Castle Gate, where coke ovens
were in opcration end found it proved higihly satisfactory for coking purposcs. In
1898 work in Sunnyside Mine No. 1, begun which brought more . settlers from Castle
Valley and ¥ellington. Among them werc Samuel Naylor and Samucl Dugmore. Mr.

Naybr had chargc of the laying of the railroad from Mounds to Sunnyside, which was
completed November 19, 1899.

On November 20, 1899, Sunnyside prednct was cut off the cast end of Wellington
precincet and o new school district created. A four-room frame school building was
erected and stood until 1905 whea it was destroyed by fire. An eight-room rock
building was erected which burned in 1925, when the present junior high building was
constructed.

The early settlers lived in tents until the company had houses built. The
first dwcllings were one and one-half stories high, made of lumber and compo-bourd.
Later four room houses were built, and the last houses erected by the company were
of rock construction.

The first settlers encountered many thrilling experiences with bears, and
lionz, but thar greatest problem secmed to be the water situation. Whitmore Creek,
or Grassy Trail Crcek, runs through Sunnyside, but owing to a disagreemcnt it was
nccessary for the Utah Fuel Company to install a pump and pipeline to secure water
for culinary purposes from Range Creck, a distance of approximately seven miles.
This punp was installed in 1906 after the water right had been purchased from Pres-
ton Nutter. At that time a steam boiler was used to supply power for the pumps. The
clectric power line was later extended over to Range Creek and in 1920 the two large

electric pumps were installed.

Sunnyside received its name from Verdi, Utah. In 1898 Verdi was called
Sunnyside, but when this new camp opened up they transferred the name of Sunnyside
to the new place ond renamed old Sunnyside, Verdi.

For several yecars Sunnysidc remained related very closcly to Castle Gatz.
When Sunnyside mine was first opcned, all coal was scnt to Castle Gate coke ovins to
be coked, until the year 1902-03 when 480 coke ovens were built at Sunnyside. The
first shipment of coke from the Sunnyside ovens was made on April 1, 1902. In.the
yeer 1912 an additional 170 coke ovens were built; two years later saw the addition
of 74 more ovens and in 1917, 89 more were complcted. In 1905 all coke ovens &t
Castle Gote were cbandoncd and coke was made exclusively at Sunnyside until the year

1929.

The growtn of Sunnyside was rapid due to the fine coking qualities of the
coal. The population grow from 00 to 2700 in 1929. Aftcr that year it decrcased
until at thc present time there are less than 500 people there. Today, what was once
the largest camp in Carbon County is filled with empty, boarded-up houses.



During the first years of operution the demand for the high-grade Sunnyside
coke wvas so great that shortly after the oponing of the first mine a second mine was
opened. During the pcak of business the two mines werc producing from 5,000 to 5550
tons per day. During February, 1924, the demand for coke decreased, due to products
other than coke being used for smeclting purposes. 4s 2 result No. 2 mine was final-
ly absndoned. The present coal output from No. 1, is 500 tons per day. Of the total
number of 819 coke ovens at the camp, only six are in u-2 at this time.

During the prosperoue ycars the Utah Fuel Company had as high as 1,200 men on
their pay rolls. For mony years Sunnyside had the distinction of working more days
in the year than any other coal nine in the United States. It alse had the reputa-
tion throughout the many ycars of activity of having fcwer acecidents for the number
of men cmployed than any mine in the state. Sunnyside mines have never had an ex-
plosion of any conseyucnce; however, ten ycars ago a disastrous fire occurred in
Mine No. 2. lien were equipped with oxygen helmets and worked for months to cxtinguish
the fire. For this dangcrous work the helmet men were paid $15.00 a day and expenses.
It is cstimated that thc conflagration cost the company over $1,000,000.00.

Sunnyside was incorporated in 1916 with W. N. Wetzcl as HMayor; A. D. Hadley,
J. M, Slapp, Samuecl Dugmore, as trustecs; J. C. Moore, town Clerk; E. V. Tucker,
constoble; Nils Helson, Treasurer; ¥. J. Emigholz, Justice of Peace, and Dr. A. W.
Dowd physician.

The present officials of the town are as follows: Horace Naylor, Mayor; John
Jancs, ~. E. Hopkinson and James Peacock, comnsclors; and Fred Jones, Clcrk.

At present.there arc muny foreigners residing at Sunnyside, most of thenm
having adopted American ways, however. Therc arc a few who retain some of their
quaint old country customs, such as wrapping the new-born babes in long strips of
cloth for fear their boncs will not grow straight. Hany of the women-folk were
accustomed to depend upon their handiwork for their hosiery and other nceds. iost
of thcm have since fullen into the medern manner of procuring such articles at the
stores.

SPRING GLEN

Spring Glen, located along the fertile Price River Valley, two miles south
of Helpur, is known as the "Garden Spot of Carbon County". Its proximity to many of
the coal mines encbles numerous mine workers to own their own homes anc gerden plots
and drive to and from their work.

The first settler of Spring Glen was J. G. Gay, a bachelor who came from
Spanish Fork during thc winter of 1779. He was attracted by the fertility of the
Price River land and located on the west sidc of the stream, opposite the present
townsite of Spring Glen. Two other bachelors, who followed and scttled as necar
neighbors, were Omer Brimhall and Andrcw Simmons. The family of Perley P. Pratt
came later. Mr. Brimhall sold his claim to F. M. Ewell in 1882. The coming of .
other scttlers requircd a hall for mectings,and the first school which wie held in
1883, vas tought by wrs. Sarah Evell. Recligious classes were held in the sazme year.

By 1886 therc were enough scttlers to seriously consider building a -own and
takiag up bench lands, a procedurc which would rcguire an cxpensive canal. In
December, 1886, the following settlers met and took legal meusurcs to organitt A
canal company under the territorial statutes: F. M. Ewcll, T. Pratt, H. J. c-3well,
Andrew J. Simons, H. Southiorth, Jans Hansen, W. H. Babcock, and others. On “nuary
22, 1687, the company was organized end work commenced on the canal, which c. ..inues

to serve tne farming community.

Much of the activity of the community was carried on in a church capacity.
The building of the Spring Glen canal was supervised by the church leaders. The
canal was finally completed and water carried to the land in April, 1893.

The town was named Spring Glen and & committee chosen to arrange for a build-
ing for meeting and school purposcs. In 1886 a dramatic company was forped, and per-
forimances given in Spring Glen and Price. School was taught in Ewell's nall by T.
Pratt and John Biglow. The meeting house was completed in 1888. The sane year a
group of citizens made preparations to lay out Spring Glen townsite. T. Pratt was
elected secretary of the meeting and H. J. Stowell chairmen. It was voted that the
torm should be four blocks north and south and three blocks east and west. T. Pratt,
Edward Davis, and H. J. Stowell werc elected to survey the tovmsie. The land was
secured for the city lots for $10.00 per lot, including the streets.

An attenmpt wos made to have a postoffice on February 20, 1888, which failed
bocause the R. R. Company objected to stopping trains at that point. John Biglow



was chosen postmaster, During the years 1888-1889 the scttlcment was engaged with .o
the twn:l and the meeting house. Tho ward was organized November 24, 1889, and o
H. J. Stowsll chosen bishop. The counselors were Edwin Fulmer and A. J. Sinons with

T. Pratt ward clerk. ; ¥

In 1889, Joln F. Rowley, an expert charcoal burner in the employ of the S.S.
Jones Company of Spanish Fork Canyon, came to Spring Glen to investigate the possi-
bilitics of ¢ charcoal busincss. Finding conditions favorable he built & set of
charcoal kilns ncar the Blue Cut. At that time the narrow gauge railway, which runs
through the Blue Cut, had been changed to a standard gauge, but it was equipped with
a third rail so the narrow gauge cars could still be used when desired. The char-
cozl business proved profitable and many men were ziven employment, cutting and haul-
ing wood and tending the kilns. The next year, another set of six kilns was built
on tae Andrew Simmons homestead, within the Spring Glen precinct. The mercantile
bueiness established was called the Bluc Cut Charcoal Coapany, in connection with
the charcoal busincess. The manufacture of charcoal continued for about fifteen
years and proved tc be of much benefit to the coummity financially.

Edwin D. Fullmer was made bishop of the ward in 1893. It was under his
supervision that the public square was fenced and planted in trees. Other elders of
the L.D.S. church to serve in thc capacity of civic lcaders were Thomas Rnodes, J.N.
Miller, Joln T. Rowley, and in 1920 Silas Rowley was choscn and holds the position
at the present time. '

A new school building was erected in 1904. It consisted of a two-room build-
ing constructed of brick made locally, arranged in such a manner that the partition
could be moved and the building used for school and community purposes. When this
building became inadequate in 1912 another two-room building and auditoriunm was
added. In 1927 thc older of the two buildings was removed to make place for an ex-
tensive new addition, which serves as graede and junior high school for Spring Glen
and Kenilworth.

The population of Spring Glen has shown a steady growth and at the present
time approximately 800 people have their homes there.

SPRING CANYON

The existence of coal in the Spring Canyon district, four miles northwest of
Helper, was known to the people of this county many years before the vein of cozl
was opened for commercial operations.

Coal was hauled by wagons and teams from an opcning on the side of the moun-
tain opposite the housec in the upper town and from a seam at the head of Sheya's
canyon, now known as Magacine canyon, but it was not until the summer of 1912, that
the property - 1600 acres in all, including coal land and towmsile - was acquired
by Uncle Jesse Knight of Provo. George a Storrs, an associate of Mr. Knight, direct-
ed prospecting in thc district wherc it wes known that two workable scams of cool
existed. In September, 1912, A. E. Gibson was cmployed us Superintendent, and
definitc plans formulated for the laying out and operating of the mine and for the
construction of 2 railroad from lielger. A branch line of the railroad was layed out
by the Knight interecsts.

Contrary to the usuzl custom of starting a camp, 60 modern rock houscs were
constructed for the use of employees, beforec opcration of the mines began. The town
was called Storrs, after General manager Geo. A. Storrs, and went by this name until -
about four years cgo wnen it was changed to Spring Canyon.

A double tent was used for school purposes during the first year, with B.H.
Stringham the first principal and Valera Fillmore and Gladys Robinson the first
tcachers. In 1914 a substantial school building and mecting house were completed
and tho camp rapidly grew in proportion. As this was the first coal mine opened in
the Spring Canyon section, providing the first school and church buildings, people
from other new camps came to avail themselves of these privileges until their own
camps could provide such accommodations. Aumong the first families to make their
homes in Spring Canyon, and who are still employed by the compony, were the Bennets,
who came in 1913; the Cowleys who followed in March, and the Fletchers, who came in
May of the same year.

Before the tramway was completed, several cars of coal hauled from the mine
in wagons were shipped, but it was not until February 1912 that actual operations
began on & large scale. By this time the main line of the D. & R. G. W. Railroad
was sufficiently completed to handle coal shipments and during the summer of that
year development work was pushed so rapidly the mine vas in a position to ship
1000 tons daily by fall. Coal was conveyed from the mine to the tipple by means of
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an aericl tramway. The volume of ‘coal hauled by this method was insufficient and
in April, 1919, the present surface tramway was completed and put into service.
Geo. A. Murphy, present Superintendent, took charge of operations at this time.

Two mines werc openced; the one on the lower vein was called No. 1 and the
one on the upper vein was known as No. 3. There was a small vein betwecn these
two large veins which has not been worked in a commercial way, although over 500
feet were driven in the coal in the hopes it would widen, but when the thicimess
remcined at four feet, work was stopped as coacl which is not high enough to be work-
ed with 2 horse or mule is at a disadvantage in this coal region, wherc most of the
mines arc operating in coal which is from seven to twenty feet high.

This minec has a large reserve of coal in No. 3 vein which will last for many
years. The No. 3 minc is on the samc vein as the Castle Gate No. 1, or "A" s eam,
which extcnds laterally for many miles. The No. 1 mine is on what is known as the
"Sub" scam. This scam does not extend northeasterly to Castle Gate, but cxtends in
a westerly direction and in addition to being worked at Spring Canyon is worked at
Standardville and in the Gordon Creck district.’

The chemical anaylsis of the coal shows about 48% fixed carbon, 42% volatile,
4.50% moisturc, 57 ash and .5% sulphur. The veins are 185 feet apart, thus the
lower vein has just that much more covering than thc upper vein, and theorctically
is a hardcr cozl and better for storage purposes.

The first railroad to be built on the property was the D. & R. G. Western.
In 1320, the Utah Roilway built their road up Spring Canyon as far ac Steandard-
ville, cnuabling the two mines, Spring Canyon and Standardville, to be serviced by
two railroads which is a great improvement as the railroad service is a very im-
portant factor in thc operation of a coal mine.

During the World VWar therc was a great demand for coal and the mine and cquip-
ment was developed continuously until Spring Canyon was producing 3,000 or morec
tons per day. Modern equipment was installed as fast as it was demonstrated to be
economical and it was not long until the mine wes equipped with 100% electrical
equipment and not a horse was used underground.

Spring Canyon, the oldest property in the Spring Canyon district, has pro-
duced up to the close of 19229, a total of 5,963,679 tons of coal. During the ycar
19292 an average of 380 men were employed. The average daily production was 1967
tons with a total for thc ycar of 4 92,755 tons and a pay roll of $733,0564.00.
Coal was produced by eight mines in the Spring Canyon district operating within a
radius of two miles, totaling 1,531,364 tons during thc year 1929. The total out-
put for the State for the same yeer (practically all from Carbon County) was
5 ,102,458 tons. In addition to supplying Utah markets the Spring Canyon coal is
shipped to Idaho, devada, Czlifornia, and the Pacific Northwest.

The pcpulation at Spring Lanyon, during the winter months, when production
is greatest, is approximately 1200. The majority are Americans, but there are also
a nunber of other nationalities including Italian, Austrian, Greek, Japaucse, and
other European raccs. tey

KIZ

Clark's Valley (Xiz) is a broad fertile valley extending from Swwnyside on
the East to the borders of Soldier Cunyon on the West. It slopes southward six
miles to the highwcy, forming onc of the largest level tracts of land in Carben
County, and it is here that the farming and ranching community of Kiz is loucated.

The soil is deep and fertile, having been washed from the mountains by
floods which have spread out over the valley floor. It varies in depth from two to
fifteon fect.

Just who thc [irst settlers wecre, no onc scems to know. It appears that a
man nened Clark, ovmed a ranch herc, which was well-stocked with cattle and horscs.
There were houses, stables, granaries, and a blacksmith shop on the place, and it
is said that the ranch was sold at one time for $75,000.00. This was before the
year 1898. In 1898 a uan by thc namz of Fausett omed the ranch and had it stocked
with a large number of horscs. 4 few ycars loter it appears there was a drouth and
the ranch was nbandoncd. The houses and buildings fell into decay and brush again
grev up in the cultivated ficlds.

In Junc, 1306, Orson Dimick and John Higginson came into the valley and
settled on the abarndoned ranch. Thay were later joined by Nephi O. Perkins and
Ephrain Dimick, Orson's father, his wife, Kiziah and othcrs. As the country was
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not yet surveyed they had only squatters' rights to the land. Gratien Etchebarne
came tc the valley in 13910. He owned a large herd of sheep and wanted a ranch for
his headquarters. He was the first man in the valley to file on his claim, in 1916.

He was very enthusiastic about the futurc of the valley and spent more money for de-
velopment purposes than any other person.

A little work was done on the present reservoir in 1910, but work did not be-
gin in earnest until George Mead came in July, 1914. In 1916, Francis Dimick came
to the valley to howestead, and several years later Lafe M. Norton and his family
came to mako their home. The Workman, Babcock, and Asay families also moved to Kiz.

Through the efforts of Mr. Norton and Mr. Etchebarne school was establizhed in
the fall of 1924. The first school house was an old log granary with a dirt roof and
the owner was Mr. Etchebarne. Mrs. Mary Tidwl, of Wellington, was employed as the
first tencher at a salary of $40.00 per month in cash and board and room for her and
her husbund. The school district paid $25.00 of this salary, and the remainder was
paid by Wir. Norton and Mr. Etchebarne. As the roof of the granary lesked, the
school was moved to Mr. Dimick's granary. When the teacher became discouraged and
resigned, Vivian Norton - an eighth grade student - was permitted to finish teaching
for the school term. School was next held in a loghouse owned by Lew Workman. By
Spring there were 17 children earolled. The teacher was paid by the transportation
allowance for each child.

By the time school started again, Mr. Etchebarne had completed the building
where schocl is now held and an cxperienced teacher, Mrs. Elsie Huntsman was cmploy-
ed. A short time later, Mrs. Huntsman met a tragic death by drowvning when the cuar
in whicih she was riding cnroute to Price, overturned in the bottom of the wash.

The pcople had many thrilling experiences during thesc times. Once a drunken
Mexican held the whole Norton family prisoners at the point of a gun for several
hours until Mrs. Norton persucded idim to go home for his supper. When he left they
sent for Help. Jake and Lew Workman came to relieve Mr. Norton in the watch for
the Mexican. While ¥r. Norton warmed himself in the housc Jakc sighted the Mexican
creeping stealthily upon the tent from bechind, with a loaded revolver in his hend.
He fired ind shattered thc Mexican's arm, the bullet penetrating his side. He wes
taken to Price for treatment and later ordered out of thc county by the sheriff.

Until 1926 the people had to go to Price or Wellington for their mail. At
this time thcre were quite a number of people residing in Kiz and they werc gronted
a request for a postoffice. In selecting a suitablc name Mr. Mead proposed the name
of Kiz, in honor of Xiziah Dimick, the pioneer woman of Clark's Valley, who was
always known as "Aunt Kiz". The namc was submitted and accepted. The first mail
left the Kiz postoffice November 2, with George Mead as postmaster. And thus the
community of Kiz came into being.

LATUDA o

Latuda, a coal mining community, is located about seven miles west of the
mouth of Spring Canyon, at on elevation of 6,700 feet. Among the first to prospect
in Latudz were Frank Gentry, who lived here until his death in 1928; George Schultz,
S. N. Marchetti, and Gus Goddart. BMr. Cameron and Mr. Latuda organized the coal
company in 1917, with Mr. Schultz as Superintendent of the mine, which position he
contimes to hold. In the same ycar S. N. Marchetti and fumily came to the camp for
the purpose of building a store. Since Mr. Marchetti's death in 1929, his wifc has
conducted the mercantile busincss.

At first there were only two or three houses, the rcmainder of the cmployces
living in tents until January, 1918, when twenty new houses were completed.

Liberty mine was the name by which the camp was kmown until the postoffice
was built and the community was then renamed Latuda, honoring the Mine Superintendent,
Frank Latuda.

Tac mining towm showed 2 steady progress from the time of the first shipment
of coal from a temporary tipple in January, 1918. In 1920 the mine office was built
of native stone and in 1922 thirty-five more homes were built to mcet the housing
demands of the miners.

The output of coal showed a steady increase from the year 1922, For a time a
thousand tons of coal were taken from the mine as a daily capacity, but with the
erection of the new tipple in 1928 the capacity increased to fifteen hundred tons
daily. The total output of the Latuda mine from 1927 to 13931 has been over two
million, two hundred seventy-five thousand tons.
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Based on solid hard rock, the seam of Liberty coal waries from six to nine
feet ond is topped by a seventy-foot stratum of rock, which is so close grained that
it appcars 2lmost like cement. For a "Joft" coal it is onc of the hardest in e i t-

encc. Because of the natural rock roof, the Latuda mine is considercd one of the
safecst in the State.

Nestling at the junction of scveral mountain canyons, the camp is in a
pretty site. The chief disadvantage is the water problem. Culinary water is haul-
ed from Helper, although spring woter is piped through the mine into the camp.

A new school building was erccted of native stone in 1921. Prior to that
timec one of the homes was converted into school rooms cnd was also uscd for all
entertainments and social functions.

On February 16, 1927, Latuda was the victim of o series of disastrous snow-
slides. Ths first slide occurrcd at the check cabin, ncar the mouth of the mine,
catching the mine foreman, Gus Goodart, just as he entered the cabin. He was
buried under twenty fcet of snow and ice and killed instantly. He had bcen in the
employ of the company since its organization in 1918, and was considered onc of
the most capable mining men in the district. An hour or so later the second slide
swooped down the canyon, wiping out a row of houses in the town and killing the
barn boss, Moroni Mower. &ir. Mower was engaged at the time in the hazardous task
of moving furniturc and in other ways assisting familizs to move from thzir homes,
which were considered in danger of the slide. Others were buried in the snmow but
werc noiv seriously injured. Ncarly a mile of railroad track was :covered with
snow and debris, a condition which tied up the rail service for four daoys.

The population of Latuda fluctuates from two to four mndred. During the
summer inany of the winers leave on vacations or to work on farms. Most of the
population consists of American, Italian, Welsh, German, Serbian, Scotch, Australian,
Finlanders, and Jeapan2sc, the latter being found in a separate colony.

The present town officers include Constable Paul Veillard and Justice of
the Peacc, Clarcice Reid. The camp is located in Precinct #556.

STANDARDVILLE

Standardville, model coal camp of Carbon County, is located in Spring Canyon,
five miles northwest of Helper. Its early history dates back to 1912 when Ir. F.A.
Swect, prominent Utah coal man and railroad builder opcned up a rich scan of coal
on thc nmountain side about a quarter of a mile north of the prescnt camp sitec. In
1914 about two hundred tons of coal were mined daily. This output increascd to
1000 tons the following year. During the present year (1932) more than 2,000 tons
daily went over the wodern steecl tipple which was erected in 1929.

As the coal tonnage increased, more men were cmployed and additional houses
required. .ilthough the housing problem presented many difficulties, wisc plenning -
on the part of thc mine officials, made Standardvillc one of the most modern camps
in Utah. It becamc a pattern for other coal camps and thus received its name,
Standardvillé. Today it has stcum-heated apartments, a hospital, a gencral merchan-
disc storc, butchcr shop, postoffice, barber shop, recreation hall, tennis courts,
ané nodern dwellings.

The population of Standardville, like all coal cemps, fluctuctes with the
demand for coal, increasing during the fall and winter months when coal produ?tion
is groutest. Approximately 545 people live in the camp. The school census lists
over 200 pupils. A public school, where grades onec to six are taught? ig cen-
trally located. Four tcachers are employcd to tcach the pupils who aitend the
school. Tae 7th, 8th, and 9th grade students attend the junior high schocl at
Latudz, a camp one mile northwest of Standardvillc. Higli schoeol §tudcnts are trans-
ported by bus to the Carbon High Scinool, at Price, twelve miles distant.

Standerdville is comnected by railroad and good highways with all Carbon
County towms. An asphalt and nacadanized road conncets the camp with Helper. Qoth
the Utah Coal Route and the D. & R. G. V. Railroads tronsport coal to the market. £
stage linc gives daily service between this comp and Helper. Standardvil%?'s future
will depend upon the future of the coul industry of Utah. Its locat?on, 11nc“quality
of cosl mined, and the splendid type of people whe nake the camp their home, assure
a bright outlook.

As a1l coal mining communities, Standardville has a few foreigners. Jgpancs;
Grocks, Italians, lexicans, Finns wnd Austrians arc the principal foreign natlon§li-
ties representod. These people readily adapt American manners, customs, and habits.
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WATTIS

Wattis is located in a cove in the mountains in the southeast
Carbon County about twenty miles from Price. High mountains extend gzlzhgaizrzﬁ
west, &nd south of the camp while the east opening permits an excellent view of g
the vullcy below. The elevation of Wattis is approximately 7,500 feet. The popula-
tion varies according to the demand for labor but at the present time it is 249.

In 1916, the Wattis brothers and Mr Browning, of O
. gden, bought 160 acres of
coal land from the United States and in 1916 began o;erating a,mine. Shipment of
coal began in the autumn of 1917 when the railroad to the camp was completed.

Early in the spring of 1918, the permanent cam
\ p was built where it is tod
and called Wattis, for the Wattis brothers of Ogden. The organization was nameday

the Wattis Fuel Company, for the president, W. H Wattis. In 1919 thi
atti . H. . his propert
merged with the Lion Coal Company. ’ it

The company built all the homes, bunk houses, Japanese camp, and expended
much moncy on improvemcnts. The main office is in Ogden where the General Mannger
has h§s headquarters. He directs all the company's mines in Utah and Wyoming vith
superintcndents in charge of cach mine and camp. There is also a mine foreman, who
runs Fhe mine, an outside foreman who operates the tipple, a master mechanic, who
superintends the machinery, a company doctor, store manager, mine clerk, night watch-
man, and at least 150 men who spend their time mining coal.

. The mine at Wattis is located on the side of the western mountains to which
the mincrs are teken in tram cars to their daily work. They represent various
nation=lities - Italian, Gree k, Japanese, Scotch, German, end American. Duc to the
uncertainty of work, the larger percent of the inhabitants are transient.

Source of information - Mrs. A. M. Dwight and Cortland T. Krams.
COAL CITY

Coal City lics nine miles due west of Helper. It is a mining community of
70 inhnbitants, bounded on the west by the Gentry mountains. Gordon Creek runs
througih the town. The elevation is 6,800 feet.

The present site of Coal City was first settled by Alfred Greames who came in
1885 for agricultural purposes. He was also a squatter and trapper. Others to
settle in the district a short time later were Wesley Gentry, William Viarren, Victor
Rambcau, Joe Noujuier, uznd Joe Vacher, all sheepmen and farmers. The place was
known as Oak Spring Bench at that time. Later Noe and Edwarde Aubert came and also
Shekra Sheye and Nedje Sheye. These men were prospectors and also dealt in real
estate. By this time the section was referred to as Cedar Mesa Farm.

On August 6, 1921, a petition was presented to the County Commissioners to
approve and establish the towmnsite called "The Great Western". The petition wus .
granted, the townsite layed off and named "Coal City" for the coal industry. A
year later the Andreini's store (then known as the Andreini and Colzani building)
was built and used as an office for the "Great Western" until 1925 when the mercan-
“tile business was started by Eugene Andreni.

During 1923, Jack Dempse , then the world's heavyweight champion, came to
Coal City to train, and during this time the town was frequently referred to as
"Coal City with a punch behind it".

The National railroad was built to the town during 1923 and 1924, years known
as the construction period. The railroad also extcnded to other mines of the Gordon
Creek District. Farming continued to progress during these years. The first school
was hcld for one month in a log cabin in 1925 with Mrs. Henry Snydergeard as teacher.
There were 24 pupils. At this time Coal City was a city of tents. Late in the same
year J. M, Miller built thec new cement-block school house and school opened in
Jenuary, 1926. Two other block houses were also built by Mr. Miller.

A Year later the Coal City store and bakery were built. The bakery supp%ies
bakel goods to the entire Gordon Creek district. Additional houses were built dur-
ing this time, and growth continued as mining devecloped.

In 1926, H. J. Fisher was elected Justice of Peace, and Robert Mack, Constable
of Coal City. The townsite has been layed off in an attractive manner and offers
possitilities to the miner for his own home and garden ploi. Electricity and an
amplc water supply is also availsble. The people now residing at Coal City are mos
ly of forcign nationalitics, niners by occupation. ; :
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RAINS AND m‘ P

Rains precinct, including Mutunl, is located at the upper end of Spring Can-
yon, scven miles west of Helper at an altitude of 7,000 feet above sea leval.

The precinct of Rains has had several diffeérent operators within the history
of its development. In 1915, L.'F. Rains suceeeded in interesting P. J. CQuealy, a
coal operator from Wyoming, in the coal lands just west of Standardville. The land
was purchased from the government and the Carbon Fuel Company organized with Mr.
Rains as president. It is interesting to note that Mr. Rains was formerly a grand
opera singer, until he was attracted to the coal mining business in which he has
since made a markced success. In 1913-14 he was general manager for the Standard Coal
Company and prior to that time had gained cxperience selling coal in California.

The new mining community was naned Rains. Little developuent work was neces-
sary on the property and tne first load of coal was shipped in November, 1915. Sone
60 houses were built for the employees and their familics, together with a2 school
building, boarding !wusc, and store. Wnile the mine was at the peak of operation
therc werc about 200 nmen enployed and daily production of coel averaged from 1200
to 1500 tons. The cocl seam was sbout 18 feet thick and of good quality. The minc
was operated continuously until March 1930, at which time it was closcd down and has
not bceen re-opened. :

Other mining activitics in the Rains precinct arc given herc in order of
their developnent: Morton No. 1 mine was opened in the fall of 1917 by Thomas
Lamph; Thompson Roins wagon mine was opened in the f£all of 1917 by Thompson Hains;
Morton No. 2 mine was oncned in the fall of 1918 by Valter Dake; Annis and Delfyer
mine was opened in Fcbruary 1921, by Frank Hennis; Mutual No. 3 mine was opencd ia
March 1925 by Albert Show. Superintendents of the Mutual Coal Company since 1921,
have been Mons H. Coffin, Jr., Albert Shaw, W. J. Bowns, and Oliver Sutch.

The ficLean mine has always been a small producer, having a daily output at
present of from 50 to 100 tons. Mutual Coal Company is the only mine of conse-
quence in this district.

_ The Mutual Coal Company has produced a total of 1,531,264 tons from February
1921, to December 31, 1931. The maximum tonnage for one year was 191,635 tons and
the mininum was 99,289 tons. Mutual cocl is generally rated as one of the best
domestic coals in the territory, operating in what is.lmown as No. 2 sub-scan. The
coal content of their present land holdings is 20,320,000 tons. Producing & yearly
tonnage of 200,000 tons, which is more than amy one previous year's tonnage,the
1lifo of the Mutual oporation would be 100 years.

The préaent school house loca.tod at Rains was built in 1921, and also serves

the population from Mutual. Rains is also the postoffice for the Mutual camp.

HARPER

2 Harper is loccted in a long canyon, part of which is in Carbon ana the rc
mainder in Duchesne County. It is 26 miles from Price to the first cabin ow ' = -,
Mr. Lund, first settler, 35 miles from Myton in Duchesne county and eighteca .
north of Sunnyside. The canyon winds in and out along the Carbon-Duchesnc lin., -.f
eighteen or twenty miles long and varies in width from a few hundred fee® < hall 4 499
mile. The mountains are called the Book Cliffs of the Wasatch ag in many pluces |
they rcsemble the leaves of a book. : ; . e
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According to government maps the name of the settlenentgia,«.- ne Mile"y dfhe
according to Hank Stewart, an early rider for Mr. Lund, it was F"ﬂznnc;iﬂ.audu‘ﬂ ;@ ?
named for two girls who lived there in the early days. The crofy ‘is ghill culied iy ;’
the Minnie Maude cruvek. There is a distance of nine miles from c. Tint’s roaf Tl o0

Beaver valley, his summer range, and the district is commonly known ag iiic - fisis, 4\
L i, ‘
Alfred Lund came from Nephi, Utah, in the spring of 188F with Lis roihuic oo
was the first man to enter the canyon and make a home. Mary mer: wont through oo
their way west but did not linger in the canyon. Mr. Lund's {irst howe, 2 1og. 7 - 5
cabin, stands in ruins on the southside of the creck. H. o cred his coibls ua and

around the canyons and wintercd them on the Uintah Desest.

At this time the government was freighting to I-rt Duchicone over u road wiich
passed through the canyon. This road is the lowest in clevation of any road bota
Price and the Uintah basin, being 1500 feot lower than the prescn rvoute up ULliow
Creek which leads to Duchesne. During the years 1888 to 1835 wu.r. roie COg suyiders
at Fort Duchesne who hauled their supplies over this route. Ac nothing of _?;c:; 3%



‘& ready marked to those
_prosperous.’ The old govornment |
s which still stand are an inch and a
C . Wood : ! /Tho Indians alsgo freighted their

ont rations. The freigh “token from Price and hauled to the reservation
dn wagons. lany Indians passed through Nine-Mile hunting and fishing, but left
the whitc men unmolested. - Thoy brought blankets and be-kets with them to trade for
horses and .cattlc. ; : i

p Wild enimals were common, ospociallf the coyote, bobcat, and lion. Today
the first two are still found, cnabling residents to profit from trapping in the
wintcer months.,

When the postoffice was established at what is now the Murray sheep ranch,
the town was named Harper. At the present time there is no mail service. In 1890
other pecople wmoved in to take up homesteads.

The most votes cast was in 1900 with 72. At present therc are 35 inhabitants.
Until 1916 there were two schools - one in Carbon and one in Duchesne district. From
1916 to 1924 but onc school was maintained. This was closed and not opened again
until 1931. Cattlc and sheep raising and farming are the principal occupations. The
Uintah desert, ton miles northeast of Nine Mile, is used for the winter ruonge.

The history of harper has been told by Frank Alger, who camc through the can-
yon in 1888 and returned in 1890 to live here since that time.

CLEAR CREEK

Clear Creek is situated six miles south of Scofield in a little valley which
is surrounded by mountains on the east, west, and south, with an altitude of 8,300
feet. The valley slopes toward the northeast and the road leading from the camp
follows thc natural coursc of the canyon. This has becen improved but fow changes
have becen made from the original route.

In the autumn of 1898, C. K. Jensen cnd Neils Scaburg, both Americans, came
to Cle=r Creek, which was then known as MMud Creek, to get timber for Mr. Kimball of
Scofield, and also for the Pleasant Valley Coal Company which was later knowm as
the Utah Fuel Company. In 1899 the Utah Fuel Company opened a mine, after conmsider-
able prospecting. Other carly settlers were Mr. Harskinen, John Erkila, Finmns, who
came in 1399; Jimmic Mancuzi, Italian, came in 1901, and John Cunningham and Charles
Snedden, both Scotch, who came to work imnmediately after the Winter Quarter's lline
explosion in 1900. David Gordon, Scotch, left his work at railroading and came to
Clear Creek in 1801. At the opening of the mine the upper part of the valley was
called Cle=r.Creek becuause of the clear, sparkling stream of water which flowed
through the valley. These men were employed in the mining industry and experlconced
the inconvenience of living in tents until houses werc built. All of the houscs
erccted were of wood, lined with compo-board. .

The growth of the camp was rapid due to the great demand for high grade coal.
Liberal wages and rcgular hours were inducements to the ever-increasing population.
It is intcresting to note that when the camp was flourishing, a regular branch of
the D. & R. G. Railroad operated through there and trains came to Clear Creek twice
daily, morning and evening. Few automobiles were owned so this service facilitated
travel. At times the snow was fourar five feet dcep on the level and for wecks at
2 time remained thus. No one seemed to be dissatisfied as long as the railroud could
be kept open. When tne railroad became blocked with snow, the men could not work
so all the mine employees worked for the railroad company helping clear tic tracks.
Thore was & good school with three or four teachers employed most of the time. At

present there are but three.

4nother factor which contributed to the rapid growth of the camp was the ex-
cellent location of the mine. The coal vein occurred at tipple height abovc the
bottom of the canyon clinminating outside haulage which necessitates the tra?way.to
" get the coal from tlie mine to the railrood cars. Anotner advantage thut this mine
had was good water for douestic and steam purposes. As this minc w&s opened before
clectric power was brought to the coal fields by the Utah Power & Light Company,
available water for steam purposes was an asset of consideruble importan?c._ Then
too, an cbundonce of timber which covercd the adjacent mounta?ns, was suituble for
timbering tho minc and supplying the demand & the saw mill which shipped lumber to

Castle Gate and Sumnyside.

At the minc it was below creck level, and there was a large quantity of water
which hod to be punped out, naturally a great disadvantage. The discharge pipe from
the mine used for conveying the water to the surface was twelve inches in dianeter.
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' years coal 1 mine was sold as "Run-of-the-mine"
me: z that the entire produce can be sold wi;ﬁgut“screeniﬁg and no waste of slack.
The first contract was with the goﬂtbern ‘Pacific Railroad at Ogden and called for
2000 tons per day. At that time it'was considered the -heapest coal in the state due
to the advontages mentioned, which curtailed the expense of production. In 1908
there were about 450 men employed with an approximate production of 2,000 tons of
coal per day. Until 1912 when machine cutters were installed the pick played an im-
portant part in the day's work. Witk the adoption of modern methods, further develop-
ments continued until there wore about 200 rooms. The out-put of coal for October
1903, was 44,513 tons, however this was not the peak of production as the period be-
tween 1317 ond 1920 shows & much greater population, and in 211 probability the mine
was employing morc mcn.

The out-put for the month of December 1931, was 5000 tons while statistics
for 1930 show o population of 256 giving evidence of a decided decline in prosperity.
The coal is now sold on the domestic market in competition with all other coals.
There is a long underground haulage and many conditions have changed since former
times.

The camp was ncver incorporated and the only officers were Mr. Hampton, Jus-
tice of Pcace, and Tom Marsh, Constable. Due to the isolation of the camp and the
heavy snows in the winter, the amusements consisted mostly of winter sports and
dances twicc 2 weck. A home dramatic troup was organized which furnished many a
good lough; a man by the name of Uncle Bert Martin brought a picture to camp once a
weck; and the Walter's Theatricsl Troupe included Clear Creek in its semi-annual
circuit. Thc nationalities reprcsented were Irish, Scotch, Welsh, Italian, Finn,
Japanese and American.

The Japanese segregatcd themselves and werc seldom scen at any social guther-
ing except pcrhaps a celebration of importance. The Finns liked amusement, erccted
a hall (which is still used by various organizations) and had a great deal of fun
among thumselves as well as entertaining the community b playing with thecir brass
instrumcnts for the dances.

Many of the older pecople of the various nationalities have reteined their
native custons and habits, some of them never having lcarned to speak or write the
English language. Others, of course, adjusted themselves more readily to the fmeri-
can ways cnd became naturalized. The younger generation includes many good scholars
who adapt themsclves readily to american ideals and ways.

For armusemcnt now the people go to Scofield for picture shows. The L.D.S.
church furnishes other forms of recrcation. The majority of the people have cnrs
and frequently go to Helper and Price for emusement and supplics.

HIAWATHA

Hiawatha nestles at the foot of Gentry Mountain, twe arms of which scen to
reach out and almost encircle the town. It is located eightcen miles southwest of
Price and ten miles off the State Highway, which passes from Price through Encry
County to Szlina in Sevier County. The elevation of Hiawatha is 7,180 feect.

The first settler was an Austrian by the name of Smith. He located & ranch
on the present sitc of Hiawatha and the traces of some of his dugouts may still be
seen in the wash a few hundred feet from the present teachers' dormitory. All other
buildings which he may have crected have long since been torn down and forgotten

The development of the mining industry in the mountains adjoining was the
reason for the founding of Hiawatha as a community. In 1908 F. E. Sweet, prescnt
simer of the Standardville property, opened a mine on the middle fork of Miller Creck.
He calicd this camp Hiawatha., Later two other mining men, Browning and Eccles by nane,
opened & mine in what is now Hiawatha proper and called that camp Black Hawk.

The first houses in the community were erccted in what is now known as Greek
tom. In 1911 sixteen houses were built cast of the railroad tracks. The houses
along the tramway were built in 1912 and 1913. A yecar later the houses west of the
present school house were erccted. .

In 1911 tho citizens of Hiawatha circuleted a petition, which was signed by
70 voters, asking that the town be incorporated. This was grunted, and on Scpt. 26,
of that year, the eity governuent was established. Henry E. Lewis was the first
president of the towm board and Geo. E. Haymond, Dr. J. E. Dowd, Dr. J. R. Flenming,
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post offices: 915 the post office at Hiawatha wos
the town government was moved to Black Hawk following the consolidation. The
ame ‘of the entire community was changed to Hiawatha. This is still the trade nanme
of the coal shipped from the West Hiawatha mine. "

In 1908 when the mine was opened on Miller Creck, Ruben G. Miller owned all
of tho water rights. It was necessary for the consolidated Fuel Company to purchase
MiITer's water rights, and the ranch owmed by hinm, in order to get water for the
canp. The Smith ranch was purchased as a town site for Black Hawk. When the mines
were first opened good judgment was used in the laying out and dvelopment of the
property. The room and pillar method was used and on account of oxisting conditions
it was the best metnod. When the mines were first opened all the mining was done by
hand. Shortly after this tine undercutting machines were purchased. These machines
travel on a truck and can thus be token to any part of the minc which has a track.
When a place is to bec cut the machine is unloaded from the truck and set to the face
of the coal. The nachines are so constructed that they can dig their way back under
the coal for a distance of six or seven feet. The faces are then drillcd, shot dovm,
and loaded out by men. ' :

In 1917 a machine was procured which would cut the coal on the top. The coal
was drilled and shot up from the bottom. This method did not prove to be successful
because the botton shots would break slate loose from the floor and mix it with the
coal. Bottom cutters have becn used since that time. During 1929 a2 new type of
nachine was put on the market which would cut the bottcm,turn half over and shear the
face down the center. One of these machines is now operating in King No. 1 minc.

The loading of the coal in the mine cars was done entirely by hand until 1917.
At this time several types of mechanical loaders were put on the market. Two of
these loaders were itried out in XKing No. 1 mine. Both proved to be failures. From
then until 1925 all the coal wes loaded by man power. At this time other types of
loading machincs were purchascd which proved to be successful and for the past four
years over 50% of all the coal mined has been loaded mechanically. The loading mach-
ine is nothing more than a conveyor which carries the coal from the face to the car.
The rotuting arms on the front of the machine drag the coal onto the conveyor. This
machine is used in rooms and cntries. A scraper conveyor is morc adaptable to pillar
extraction. Two such machines are in use in the King No. 1 mine at the present time.
A scraper is a large bucket which is pulled up ani dovn the face of the coal by a
hoist and a rope. The coal is pulled into a hopper from which a conveyor carrics the
coel to the mine car.

Fron the following figurcs one can readily see the growth in the coal produc-
tion of tlic Black Hawk mine. During the yecar 1912, 78,789 tons were produced. In
1929 the production had growm to 428,347 tons. King iHo. 1 mine is very safe from a
gas standpoint. It is located high up on the mountain, all the cracks and crevices
in the strota over the coszl arc free from water cnd in ages past the gas has escaped
through these cracks. Gas is usually found in mines which are driven under rivers
where the water pressure kceps the cracks sealed. :

The first railroad to Hiawatha was built by the Consolidated Fuel Company in
1909. While this roud was in operation the railroad headguarters and shops were
located in East iiiawatha. Due to the heavy grades and the impossibility of hauling
large trains, a ncw road was built by the Fucl Company in 1914. This road extended
fron Castle Gate, a distance of 23 miles. The road to Price was abandoned and the
stecl torn up in 1917

The town is prosperous and within its limits can be seen the splendid school
building, church sphires, a recreation hall, hotel ond store buildings. The profusion
of trces, lawms, flowers, and gardens cmphasize the pride of the people in their
attractive homcs. Two huadred twenty-five dollars is givem away each yecar to the
owmers of the best kcpt lavms and gordens. The company dairy farm, ¥pcatcd at the
old Miller ranch insurcs the cmployces of a plentiful supply of pure milk and cream.
Water from mountain springs is carried to cvery home in the towm through a well-in-
stalled weter system. A modern sewer system aids in sanitation. The town is govern-
ed by a Board, with the following mcmbers at present: J. P. Russell, President, ?.
E. Gleason, L. F. Crogan, D. V. Garber cnd E. E, Wrignt, trustees. Merrit Brady is
Justice of the Peace and Wm. Steckleman is Towvn Marshall.

Until 1920 when the prosent school building was crected, considerable diffi-

culty was cxperienced in housing the pupils. During one year school was held in
five differcnt buildings in the town. The teachers had much trouble in finding
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_ ion operated . il 1924, At that time the Welfare
Association was organized and the management of the hall taken over by them. The
Welfare «ssociation is controlled by a'committee of men elected by the mine workers.
One man is elected from each department. All receipts are used for civic betterment.
This fund is also used to support the baseball team during the summer. Each cmployee
pays $1.00 per month to the Welfare committce and in return he gets an admittance
weekly to a picture show for himself and his family. If an entertainment is free no
rental is charged for the usc of the hall.

Of the 277 men employed in the camp at the present time, 150 are Americans,
54 Greeks, 17 Austrians, 17 Japancse, 12 Serbians and Slavs, 11 Italians, § Spaniards,
2 English, 2 cach of Scots and Frcnchmen, and one each of Germans, Roumanians, Swcdes,
Assyrians, and Armenians.

In the State Capitol building in Salt Leke City, the visitor will probably
notice a hugs block of coal on display. This block of coal was taken from the King
No. 1 minc and sent to the capitol during the summer of 1923. Its weight is 20,900
pounds and it was mined from a twenty-foot seam.

WINTER QUARTERS

Winter Quarters, "The Ghost Village", is situated in the upper end of Pleasant
Valley. The boarded windows which were once open to the sunshine, darken the weather-
worn housce; the silent school house, a pretentious edifice, is forever hushed and
free from muddy feet and the laughter of merry voices. Fate has dealt unkindly +with
the little viilage and has left us only a memory -of friendly neighbors, plecasaant
social getherings, and the horror of the dreadful mine disaster, as well as the
atruggle of women and children who were left alone to carry on.

Winter Quarters was the first coal mine opencd in Utah, east of the Wasatch _
Mountains. About 1880 coal was discovered by Welch coal miners from SanPete Valley
who built a2 wagon road, opencd 2 small mine and began hauling the coal to the secttie-
ments in SenPete and Utah vallcys. There was no railroad south of Springville at
that time. Cabins were built, provisbns brought in to facilitate work during the
winter months when the snow was unusually deep, and preparations made for the hawling
of coal when the roads became passable in the spring. The town was appropriately
named "Winter Quarters"”.

After a year or two it was decided that a railroad should be constructed. il-
though there was no money availuble for the enterprise, a cqmpany was organized, and
plow and scraper work began. A large supply of dry goods, clothing, shoes, calico,
etc., had becn purchased at some bankrupt stock sale in the east, by the promoters
of the railroad and this, as well as flour and bacon, were used in lieu of money to
pay the workers on the railroad grade. Just how the rails, ties, switches, etc.,
were purchased is not known by the writer, but nevertheless the project was completed
and called by many "The Calico Road", prior to its purchase by the D. & R. G. Western,
which latcr conneeted the line with the main line at Colton, then known as Pleasant
Valley Junction, or briefly - "P. V. Junction".

-

The minc at Winter Quarters was leased to Bishop David Williams, who opcrated
it for cight or nine yecars after the completion of the railroad. The Bishop was not
Scotch but no doubt thought the methods of mying used in the building of the railroa
was an cconomical plan so hc adopted this method in paying the miners whenever possible"

Modern mecthods of mining were not used in the Winter Quarters mine until the
last few yecars prior to its abandonment. The mine wac always considered safc until
the explosion in 1900, and from that time on precautions were used to guard against
dust accwmulations.

nAfter Castle Gate and the Independent mines in the Castle Gate District were
opened, the coal produced in Winter Quarters could not be sold on the' domestic market
as it was inferior in quality so from 1208 until the mine was closed, the coal was
used by the railroad company for its locomotives. Since 1920 there was a decided
decrease in production. The underground haulage was too far to justify thc great ex-
penditurcs together with keen competition of modern cquipped mines, hence the mine
closed in 1928. Some of the houses were moved away, the rest were boarded up. Then
followed the pilgrimage of departing homsseckers; some of the houses were moved while
others mere boarded up and th“‘h%BtOTYYOf Winter Quarters came to a close."




